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Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
The City of Midwest City, Oklahoma
Midwest City, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Midwest City, Oklahoma (the “City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used, and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Midwest City,
Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2011 and the respective changes in financial position and where
applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As reflected in the balance sheet of the governmental funds and in the notes to the financial
statements, the City has implemented GASB statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report (under
separate cover) dated January 17, 2012, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison
schedules, as listed in the table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

QOur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Midwest City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
other supplementary information as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying information included in the Statistical section, as listed in the table of contents,

have not been subjected to the procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Cola = Q_._nck D .

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
January 17, 2012
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The City of Midwest City’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the City’s financial activity, (c)
identify changes in the City’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent years’
challenges), (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (e)
identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the City’s
financial statements beginning on page 18.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, by
$534,491,978 (net assets). Of this amount, unrestricted net assets of the government activities were
($2,871,763) with the business type activities of $23,563,288.

« The business type unrestricted net assets have $24,414,583 of commitments as it relates 1o future
capital needs of the City. At June 30, there were several projects under construction which consisted
of the engineering for the Sewer Plant upgrades, Jet Dr./Harold Court and Soldier Creek Industry
Park. Contracts related to these projects are disclosed on page 54 of the report. The Sewer fund is
recording $15,276,308 of the unrestricted funds however engineering is currently being done for
plant upgrades which could cost as much as $60,000,000. Additional funding for the sewer plant will
be done through the issuance of revenue bonds, see subsequent event note, page 55. The construction
is needed in order to meet the ever changing needs of the City and to comply with EPA mandates.

« The City’s total net assets increased by $8,433,276 or 1.6% from the prior year. This was a result of
an increase of $6,986,639 in the governmental activities. The detailed changes made from the
governmental fund statements to the Statement of Net Assets can be found on page 18. The business-
type activities had an increase of $1,446,637. Both revenues and expenses increased over the prior
year.

« At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned General Fund was $3,623,518.

« The City implemented GASB Statement 54 — Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions which resulted in the reclassification of some fund types and presentation of fund balance
in the new categories of nonspendable, restricted, assigned and unassigned

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of
Midwest City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise of three
components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements and (3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to the private-sector
business.
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The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets serve as
a useful indicator on whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless
of when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and fines and
eamed but not used vacation and sick leave as stated in City policy and union contracts). Both the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting as opposed to the modified accrual basis used for Fund Financial Statements of the
governmental funds.

In its Statement of Net Assets and ihe Statement of Activities, the City is divided between two types of
activities:

» Governmental activities. Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including general
government, public safety, streets, culture and recreation, health and welfare and economic
development. Sales taxes and franchise taxes finance most of these activities as reflected on page 19.

« Business-type activities. The City charges a fee to customers to cover the cost of services it
provides. The City’s utility system (water, sewer, sanitation, and drainage), conference center/hotel,
golf, trailer park and industrial park activities are reported here.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund financial statements
provide detailed information about the most significant funds, but not the City as a whole. Some funds
are required o be established by state law or bond covenants. However, the City Council establishes
many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other monies. All of the funds of the
City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and internal service
funds.

e Governmental funds. The majority of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method identified as the
modified accrual basis of accounting which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view
of the City’s general governmental operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. By comparing information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements, readers may beiter understand the long-term impact of the
government's near-term financing decisions. The relationship or differences between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental
funds are detailed in a reconciliation following the fund financial statements.
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The City of Midwest City maintains individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General, Police, Fire, Hospital
Authority, and the Tax Increment Financing funds. Data from the debt service fund, 12 special
revenue funds, and 7 capital project funds, all of which are considered to be governmental, are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements starting on page 65 of this
report.

¢  Proprietary funds. The City charges customers for certain services it provides, whether to outside
customers or to other units within the City. These services are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same manner that all activities are reported in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a
component of proprietary funds) are similar to the business-type activities that are reported in the
Government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.
The internal service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) are utilized to report activities
that provide supplies and services for the City’s other programs and activities. such as the risk
management functions, health self-insurance fund, fleet services, surplus property activities and
public works function. Because these services benefit both govemmental and business-type
functions, they have been included in both the governmental and business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

The City of Midwest City maintains five major enterprise funds. The City uses these funds to
account for its water, sewer, sanitation, conference center/hotel and drainage operations. The funds
provide the same type of information as the govemment-wide financial statements, only in more
detail and include some of the internal service fund-type activity. The City considers these enterprise
fund activities to be major funds. Data from 6 non-major enterprise funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major proprietary funds is
provided in the form of combining statements starting on page 69 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As of June 30, 2011, the City’'s combined net assets are $534,491,978, of which $433,411,261 can be
attributed to governmental activities and $101,080,717 attributed to business-type activities. This
analysis focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the City's
governmental and business-type activities.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets, 80.1%, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
water rights, building, machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. The net change in capital assets can be reviewed in Table 1 with key element changes shown
in Table 3.

i0
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Current and other assets
Capital assets
Tonal assets

Long-tenn debt outstanding
Other liabilities

Total linbilities
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets,

nel of debt
Restricted
Unrestricied

Tolal net assels

Table |
Net Assels
{Ln Thousands)
Governmental % Inc. Business-rype % Inc, % Inc.
Actlvities (Dec.) Activities {Dec.} Primary Government {Dec.)
2011 2010 211 2010 2011 2010

£ 118,995 £ 106,107 12% $ 29292 § 33,699 -13% 5 148287 $ 139.806 6%
164224 370,354 -2% 103740 99,114 5% 467,964 460,468 0%
482,219 476,461 1% L1032 132,813 0 616,251 619,274 1%
42,307 42,301 0% 29,623 inz22 -2% 71,930 72,523 1%
7.501 7.735 =% 2329 2,957 21% 9.830 11,692 -8%
45,808 50.036 0% 31,952 3317% -4% 81.760 B3,215 -2%
354,528 359.237 -1% 76,262 69,944 5% 430,786 429,131 0%
81,759 65,194 25% 1,255 1,259 0% 83,014 66453 25%
{2.872) 1994 -244% 23,563 28,431 -17% 20,691 30,425 -32%
5 433411 $ 426,425 2% 3101,080 $99.634 1%  $534,491 526,059 2%

Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $6,986,639 or 1.6%. The business type
activities increased the City’s net assets by $1,446,637 or 1.45% for a net effect increase of $8,433,276,
or 1.6%. The key elements of these changes are contained in Table 2.

11
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Table 2
Changes In Net Assels
{In Thousands)
Governmental % Inc. Business-Type % Inc. Total % Inc.
Activities (Dec.) Activities {Dec.} Primary Government {Dec.)
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues:
Program revenucs;
Charges for services § 5200 % A58R 13% $ 24205 §23.051 5% $ 29,405 327,639 6%
Operating grants and contributions 4,669 3,161 48% - - - 4,669 36l 8%
Capital grants and contnbutions [.392 2869 -51% - - - 1,392 2,869 -51%
General revenues.
Sales and use laxes 27,152 26,467 3% . - . 27,152 26467 3%
Cther taxes 0,869 6,698 3% - . - 0,869 6,098 %
(nher peneral revenue 14,723 7.648 923% 081 1.180 -42% 15.404 B.828 4%
Total revenues 60,005 51,411 17% 24,886 24,231 % §4,80] 75,062 12%
Program expenses:
General govemnment 6,129 5,001 2% - - . 6,129 5.063 21%
Public salety 25917 25475 2% - - - 25917 25475 2%
Sireets 15,003 14,975 0% - - - 15,043 14,975 0%
Cultural, parks and recreation 1,377 [,491 -8% - - - 1,377 1,491 -8%
Health and Welfare 212 936 -1T% - - - 212 9216 -77%
Economic Development 4,494 4,640 =30, - - B 4,494 4,649 -3%
Waler - - 4,674 5.887 =21% 4,674 5887 -21%
Sewer - . 6,244 6,120 2% 0,244 6,120 2
Sanitaton - - . 1,635 3469 5% 31,035 3469 5%
Drinage . - [ 560 19% 008 560 19%
Conference Cenler - - 7003 521 33% 7.003 5273 33%
Onher activilies - - - 1,102 1,034 7% 1,102 1,04 %
Tatal expenses 53,132 52,580 1% 231,326 22,343 4% 70,458 74,932 2%
Excess (deliciency)
before ransfers 6,873 (1,158) 694% 1,560 1.8R8 -17% 8,431 T30 1055%
Transfers 113 {112) 201% 113y 112 -201% - -
Increase (decrease)
in net assets 5 6,986 (S 1,270) 650% s 1447 $ 2,000 -28% 5 8433 $ 730 1055%

Governmental Activities. The revenues reflect an increase over last year of $8,574,031. This
significant increase is the result of the current year unrealized investment gain of $11,770,165
compared to prior year unrealized gain of $4,916,907. This increase in unrealized gain is due to strong
market performance in FY 2011. The Hospital Authority is the only fund in which the unrealized gains
or loss on investments are recorded. All other funds’ investments are FDIC insured, collateralized or
direct obligations of the United State Government. The most significant governmental activities
expenditure was in providing public safety with a cost of $25,916,780. These expenditures were funded
by revenue collected from a variety of sources, the largest being a transfer from General Fund in the
amount of $16,517,787 and dedicated sales tax of $4,763,988 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
The most significant poriion of public safety expense is the cost of personnel. Salaries and benefits
totaled $21,996,555. Other significant governmental expenditures are for the streets in the amount of
$15,003,080 of which $11,791,312 is depreciation expense.

Business-type Activities. Business-type revenue increased by $655,632, a 3% increase over prior
year. The water revenue increased from $5,616,635 in previous year to $6,953,355 in this year as a
result of utility rate increase. The investment income decreased from $1,176,729 to $664,010, due to

12
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decrease in cash and investment account balances as well as a decline in interest rates.

Budgetary Highlights. For fiscal year 2010-2011, General Fund revenue budget was amended by
$851,659 or 3.5% of the original budget of $24,177,807. The actual revenues exceeded the final
budget projections by $241,063. General Fund actual expenditures (including transfers) on a budgetary
basis were $26,729,638 compared to the final budget of $27,290,571. General Fund actual transfers
were over budget projections by $111,009 or 0.7%. Police and Fire accounted for $65,090 and $52,627
respectively due to the actual revenue collections for these funds were more than budget projection,
see page 57 of the report for more detail.

The Police Fund revenue budget was increased by $145,577, or 5.5%, of the original budget of
$2,629,367. This was needed due to increased sales tax of $116,813 and JAG grant of $28,764 for in-
car cameras. The amended revenue budget was over projection by $24,087 or 0.9%. The actual
expenditures (including transfers) on a budgetary basis were $12,120,547 compared to the final budget
of $13,043,823. Budget projections (including transfers) were $923,276 or 7.3% over actual
expenditures. Some positions were budgeted but not staffed due to military leave and vacancy; actual
separation pay is less than expected; $222,704 capital outlay encumbered but not spent due to vehicles,
building remodel and major software purchase not able to be completed or acquired during the fiscal
year,

The Fire Fund revenues budget was amended by $104,876. This was the result of estimated actual
tax revenues exceeded the final budget projections by $94,876, a donation from liberty mutual for
$10,000. The actual miscellaneous revenue showing negative amount of $3404 is due to $20,730
write-off of receivable that is uncollectible. The actual expenditures (including transfers) on a
budgetary basis was $10,422,835 compared to the final budget of $10,708,197. Actual expenditures
including transfers were $265,362 or 2.5% below projections.

The budget to actual comparisons for these funds can be found on pages 57-60 of the report.

Capital Asset At the end of fiscal year 2011, the City had $467,963,992 invested in a broad range of
capital assets, including police and fire equipment, buildings. conference center and hotel, park
facilities, roads, bridges, water and sewer facilities and distribution systems. This amount represents a
net decrease (including additions and deductions) of $6,129,911 for the primary government and an
increase of $4.626,550 for the business type activities. For the primary government, although the City
had building additions of $1,911,451, construction in progress additions of $2,090,937 and
infrastructure additions of $1,288,297; the depreciation expense of $13,638,894 caused the current
year reduction, as previously noted, $11,791,312 of depreciation related to streets. Table 3 reflects the
net key elements that make up the capital assets by type and source.

13



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

TABLE 23
Capital Assets
{In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type
Activilies Activitles Taotal
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Land S 30,325 S 29,086 $ 7.550 $ 7.550 $ 7875 8 36,636
Waler nphts - - 4,673 4.673 4,673 4,673
Construction in progress 3.694 2,289 9,292 4,001 12,986 6,380
Buildings 23,547 21,636 28.813 28,645 52,380 50,281
Machinery and equiprnent 15,731 15,143 11,022 10,194 26,753 25,337
Vehicles 7122 6,561 5.662 5,740 12,784 12,301
Infrastructure 427,483 426.195 100,969 98,980 528452 525,175
507,902 500,910 167.981 159,873 675,883 660,783
Less: Deprecialion {143.679) [13(},556) {6d,241) {60,759 (207,920 {191.315)
Totals 5 364,223 3 370,354 $ 103,740 H 99.114 $ 457,963 $ 469 468

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on pages 37-39 of this report.

Debt Administration. At vear end, the City had $67,946,503 in long term debt outstanding as compared
to $69,949,793 at the end of the prior fiscal year, a decrease of 3% as shown in Table 4. See pages 41-43
for a more in depth review of long-term debt.

TABLE 4
Long-Term Debit
(In Thouspnds)
Governmental Business-Type
Actlvities Activiiles Tota)
2011 2010 2011 2010 2 2010
General obligation bonds % 9700 § 1,100 § - 5 - $ 9.700 3 11.100
Noles payable 24,723 25,016 1.219 1.403 25,942 26419
Accrued compensated absences 3.827 3611 781 9 4,608 4,320
Revenue bonds - - 26,740 27,375 26,740 17375
Revenue bonds premium - - 354 370 354 370
Revenue bonds deferred refunding - - (835) (951) (8335) {951}
Refundable deposits 72 96 1,363 1316 1437 1.412
Totals M 38322 § 39823 % 29,624 § 30,222 § 67.946 S 70,045

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates. While fiscal circumstances have not been
optimal, the City of Midwest City has been fortunate not to have experienced the severity of economic
conditions that have affected many cities across the country.

Sales tax is a great indicator of our economic situation since it is the main revenue source for our
governmental funds. Sales and Use tax collections for FY 2011 totaled $27,152,264 compared to
$26,467,124 in FY 2010. The total increase in Sales and Use Tax collection was $685,140 or 2.6% in
fiscal comparison. A historical review of revenues can be found on page 78 of the report.
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The revenues for the original adopted FY 2012, excluding transfers in are $82,530,338 compared to
$98,873,432 in FY 2011. The decrease in revenue projections comes from $20,000,000 loan proceeds for
the Sewer Plant construction that was budgeted in FY2011 but not included in the original FY2012.
However in December of 2011, the sale of revenue bonds in the amount of $46,550,000 did occur. The
Hospital Authority had a lease interest increase of $2,238,144. This was due to the completion of two
new floors to the hospital which in turn the lease was amended to reflect the increased lease payments.
With the ever increasing cost of medical and the City being self-insured, a multi-tiered premium was
established in FY 11-12. The change in premiums resulted in a revenue increase of $760,163 of which
the employee contributes according 1o the tier in which they are participating.

The expenditures/expenses for FY 2012, excluding transfers out are $110,401,188 compared to
$117,219,571 in FY 2011. The expenditure budget has several large capital projects proposed such as
Wastewater Treatment Plant, Post Road widening between SE 15th Street and Reno Avenue, 5 miles of
sidewalks throughout the city, site work for Soldier Creek Industrial Park, new cell tower to replace
Bomber Water Tower, eastside water distribution improvements, [-40 corridor enhancements, golf course
restrooms, and Air Depot Boulevard utility relocations. In addition, the City staff will continue to be
heavily involved in a number of projects to enhance our operational capabilities. These will include the
new Cityworks work order/inventory management software package for Public Works, new MCT’s and
new lap-top units for all police patrol units, which will be more user friendly, faster and contain a self-
contained GPS unit,

The City made changes to the health benefits plan in the FY 10-11 as follows:

. Increased premiums $15 per employee in which the city picked up the cost

. Employees electing family coverage were required to pay $15 per pay period.

» Deductibles changed from $600 to $1000 for individual and from $1200 to $2000 for family.
. Co-pay increased from $20 to $25 for non-specialist and from $20 to $40 for specialist,

Although these changes did occur in FY 10-11, the escalating cost of health coverage required additional
changes to the plan. As noted above a tiered system has been put in place for the FY 11-12 fiscal year. In
addition to the tiered system, the employee is contributing $10 a pay period toward the employee
coverage. It is with great expectation that these changes will help with the funding of the health care
plan.

The City has union contracts with the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees
(AFCSME), police and fire. However, the AFCSME will no longer be recognized after November 1,
2011 due to a change in the state statutes. The budget does contain a cost of living increase of 2% for the
Fire Union and the non-represented employees of the city. The police negotiated a 2.5% cost of living
increase. There are no furloughs or reduction in wages reflected in the FY 11-12 budget.

As in the past, revenues and expenditures will be closely moniiored throughout the year. Of particular
concern will be whether the local economy rebounds or remains flat. In a resolution adopted by the City
Council, the necessary emergency reserves (10% for General and 5% on all operational funds) are
contained in each fund. As a measure of further protection, the General Fund is carrying a greater
emergency reserve. The established reserves will help the City weather any unforeseen economic
downturns.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

In September 2011, the City issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, series 2011 to refund Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds, series 2003 which financed the hotel conference center, see subsequent
event note, page 55.

In December 2011, the City Municipal Authority issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, series
2011A for funding capital infrastructure improvements fo the wastewater treatment plant, see subsequent
event note, page 55.

The quatified electors of the City, voting at an election held on August 9, 2011, approved Ordinance No.
3145 of the City levying an additional sales tax of fifty-five hundredths of one percent (0.55%). The
allocation of the new tax is as follows: 0.4015% to be used for waste water treatment plant debt service.
0.0495% to be used for public safety, 0.0495% be used for general government and 0.0495% be used for
streets/parks. The new sales tax rate is effective on January 1, 2012.

There is a sewer rate adjustment per Ordinance 3158. A $0.90 fee is added per one thousand (1,000)
gallons billed to each customer to help fund the debt service requirements of the new waste water
treatment plant. The new sewer rate is effective January 1, 2012,

Request for Information. This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s
finances for all those with an interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City of Midwest
City Finance Department, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Statement of Net Assets— June 30, 2011

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,195,644 5 7,059,568 h) 16,255,212
Investments 84,095,759 14,334,825 98,430,584
Accounts receivable, net 2,766,371 3,035,246 5,801,617
Interest reccivable 44,420 32,992 77412
Other receivable 29,255 70,238 99,493
loventory 183,563 265,676 449,239
Internal balances {4,025,383) 4,025,383 -
Prepaid cxpenses 3,180 - 3,180
Due trom other governments 3,720,751 - 3,720,751
Lease receivable 22,294,687 - 22,294,687
Deposits held by others 687,300 - 687,300
Capital assets:
Land, water rights, and construction in progress 34,019,380 21,515.432 55,534,812
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 330,204,208 82,224 972 412,429,180
Unamortized bond issuance costs - 467,906 467,906
Total assets 483.219,135 133,032,238 616,251,373
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,235,137 1,309,494 2,544,631
Wages payable 1,934,814 570,238 2,505,052
Claims payable 4,154,142 - 4,154,142
Due to other governments 17,302 - 17,302
Accrued interest payable 159,130 448,077 607,207
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 3,242,360 1,300,438 4,542,798
Due in more than one year 39,064,989 28,323,274 67,388,263
Total liabilitics 49,807.874 31,951.521 81.759.395
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 354,523,588 75,410,892 429,934,480
Resiricted by:
Enabling legislation 64,143,217 1,039,108 65,182,325
Statutory requirements 1,861,260 - 1,861,260
External contracts 15,754,959 216,134 15,971,093
Unrestricted (2.871,763) 24,414,583 21,542,820
Total net assets 3 433,411,261 $ 101,080,717 ¥ 534491978

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Statement of Activities —Year Ended June 30, 2011

Functions/Proprams

Primary governmeni:
Governmental actis iles:
General govemment
Public safety
Sireets
Culiure and recrealon
HHealth and wellare
Leonomic development
Total govemmental activiues

Businesstype acuviues
Water
Waslew ater
Samtaton
Drainage
Conference Center
Gell
Trailer park
Industnat park
Total business-1ype achisines

Total primary poserament

Program Reyenues Nel (Expense} Revenoe and Changes In Ned Assets
Operniting Capital Primary Governmen!
Churges for Gruals and Grants aod Gover b Boasl Ty pe
Expenses Services Contribotions Coniribuilons Actlvitles Acllvltics Totwi
$ 6128981 H 917,751 H 121,187 5 8758 3 M.514.217) 3 - 3 151421
25.916.780 2691.821 2438297 297,076 (20489,.586) - (520.489.586)
15.003.080 . 675,001 415,110 (13912959) - (313,912,950
1.376.821 493,798 B6.635 (796,388) - (5796.388)
211721 - 119,716 - 92.005) o (592,005
4.494.233 1.096.577 132835 103,613 12,065.708) - 32 063,708)
53.131.616 5.199.949 4.669.181 1,391,623 (41,870.803) - {41.870.863)
4.674.128 7.369.716 - - . 695,588 25695588
6.244.429 6.074.86% - - . (169,566) 169,566}
1697 4,660,104 - - . 1,025,107 1025107
667.987 394070 - - - (2739171 (273917
7003191 4.566,260 - - - {21.4%6914) [2.436,914)
1023914 1.059.332 . . - 15418 15418
77.723 79012 . . - 1409 1409
108 1.800 - - - 1,692 1.692
23.326.480 24205297 - - - 878,817 878817
$ 76458096 $ 29405246 $ 4.669.181 3 [.39]1.623 (41.870.863} 478,817 140,992,046)
Genernl revenoes:
Taxes:
Sales and use taxes } 27.152.264 H - 1 27.152.764
Property tax 1.419.968 5 1.419,968
Franchise and public service taxes 2449317 . 2449317
Hotel motel laxes 534,761 - 514,761
Intergos emmental res enue nol resiricted to specific programs 465,021 - 465,023
Investment income 14,574,101 664010 15.238.111
Miscellanecus 148,982 16896 165878
Transfers - Internal nctis ity 113.086 {113.086) -
Tota) general revenues and transfers 48 857,502 567.820 49.425.322
Change in net assets 6986639 1.446.637 843327
Nel nssels - beginnlng 426424622 99.634.080 526,058,702
Nel assets - ending - 433410261 3 101,080,717 3 534 491,978

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2011

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Recevables:
Accounts recewvable
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Depaosus held by others
Prepaid expenses
Other receivable
Due from other governments
Inventory
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Luabilities:
Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Wages payable
Deferred revenue
Refundable deposits {court)
Due to other funds
Due to other govermuents
Total habilines

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restneted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and [und balances

Midwest City Tax Increment Other Total
General Police Fire Hospital Fi B Governmental  Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Authority Fund Funds Funds
1,490,644 5 694504 $ 412481 5 603,74% $ 5 4,729911 5 1931349
3741021 1.823.730 978.119 63818515 10,544.400 81,205,945
1,637,188 53,121 - - 9838 2,674,183
6,694 3982 - 1830 . 24,561 37,077
93,863 1062,750 852,405 660,547 . 105,631 2,775,286
- - - - - 687,300 687,300
3180 - - - - - 3,180
25373 17706 2,106 - - - 29,255
2,744,113 111,069 266,246 - - 379,321 3,720,751
- - - - - 137,112 137,113
0,742,176 & 3.970,993 $ 2511447 3 65,084,650 5 - $ 17.892,173 $ 99,201,439
189,180 5 22,094 § 6,161 3 136,464 5 o 5 391,192 3 745,091
- - - - 137,734 137,734
510,957 692,522 569,993 2,483 91.860 1,873,815
1215276 15972 - 288,073 2BRISS 1,927470
72432 - - - . - 71432
1,906,864 - 1,122,787 - 4,741,620 228401 7.999.672
17,302 - - - - - 17,302
4,018,011 750,588 1,698,941 427,020 4,741,620 1,137,342 12,773,522
3,180 - . - 824,413 827,593
498,159 3,220,405 812,506 64,657,030 - 15.407,106 B4,595,806
1,599,308 - - - - 33an 122,620
3623518 - - - 14,741,620 - 11.118.102)
5,724,165 3,220,403 #12.506 04,657,000 (4,741,620) 16,754,831 86,427.917
9,743,170 § 3970,993 5 511,447 $ 65.084.650 5 5 17,892,173 £ 59,201,439

See accompanying notes to the basic financial staternents.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Governmental Funds Statement of Changes in Fund Balances — Year Ended June 30, 2011

Midwest Cln  Tax Increment Otber Total
General Police Fire lospital Finaneing Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Authority Fund Funds Funds
Revennes: .
Taxes $ 22035973 $ 2,628,833 32,135,155 3 347580 5 981,161 § 5237514 § 33,566,216
Intergovernmenial 553,823 589,978 1,676.441 - - 3.620,262 6,440,504
Charges [or services 763,738 45,144 9,023 - - 13754697 2,193,602
Funes and ferlemures 1,676,242 117,669 - - - 207411 2,001,322
Licenses and permils 291,907 - 10,375 - - 93,220 395,511
Inx esiment income 128,947 63,009 24,300 13,979,067 32 150,806 14,546,261
Miscellaneous 439,440 18,857 - 2838 - 91,057 552.201
Total revenues 25.850,079 3,363,490 3,855,394 14,529,485 981193 10,973,976 59,695,617
Expendltiures:
Current-
General government 3,440,778 - - 38K,706 - 449,726 4,279,210
Public safety 77107 11471378 10,661,221 - - 27,752 23,737 A5H
Sireets 2,629.855 - - - - 89,800 2,719,655
Culture and recreation 909,255 - - - - 211,608 1,120,863
Health and welfare 3032 - - . - 157951 160,983
Economie development 2,783,208 - - - 145 1,207,976 3.991,329
Capital cutlay 409,091 712965 531.835 1,767,312 232,030 4,158,837 TAIZOT0
Debi service:
Principal retirement - - - 277101 - 1416,465 1,693,566
Interest and fiscal charges - - 39,033 1.442.935 - 503,760 1,985,730
Total expenditures 10.952.326 12,184.343 §1,232.091 3.876,054 232175 9,023.875 47.500,864
Excess (deficiency) ol revenues over expenditures 14,937,753 (R.7I0,85%) {7.376,697} 10,653,431 749.018 1,952,101 12,194,753
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 2,542,348 9,178,057 7340480 - - 2,097,596 21,158,481
Translers out 16,736,194} - 188.000) 33,365) - 14,151,604y (21.000.163}
Toetal other financing sources (uses) (14,193,846} 9.17R,057 7,252.480 (33.365) - {2.054,008) 149,118
Wet change un und balances 743,607 457,204 (124,207 10,620,066 740018 (101,907) 12,344,071
Fund balances - begioning 4,980,258 2,763,201 936,723 54,037,564 (5.4%0,638) 16,850,738 74,083,840
Fund balances - ending 5 5,724,165 3 3,220,405 5 BI2506 $ 64.037.630 S (741.620) 3 16,754,831 3 86427917

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Fund Balance — Net Assets Reconciliation:

Fund balances of governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of §142,938,547.

Certain long-term assets are not available to pay for current fund liabilities and, therefore, are
deferred in the funds or not reported in the funds:
Due from other governments
Other receivable, net of allowance
HMA Haospital Receivable

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities
to individual funds. An allocation of the the assets and {iabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and.
therefore, are not reported in the funds:
General obligation bonds payable
Notes payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued interest payable

Net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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363,325,992

110,370
1.817,106
22,294,687

24,222,163

(2.424.638)

(9,700.000)
(24,722.899)
(3.695.878)
(21,396)
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Changes in Fund Balances — Changes in Net Assets Reconciliation:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental lunds hY 12,344,071
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are diftferent because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activitics
report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets

Capital asset purchases capitalized 7.413,169

Loss on disposal of capital asset (10,608)

Depreciation expense {13.593,578)
(6,191,017)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure and repayment of leasehold receivable is a revenue
in the govermmuental funds, However, the repayments reduce long-term liabilities or long-term
or the long-term assets in the Statement of Net Assets.

Leasehold receivable receipts (205,313)

Note payable principal payments 293,566

General obligation bond principal payments 1.400,000
1,488,253

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
Deferred revenue 525,353

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Change in accrued interest payable 2,099
Change in accrued compensated absences (202,829
(200.730)

Internal service fund activily is reported as a proprietary fund in the tund financial
statements, but certain net revenues are reported in governmental activities
on the Statement of Activities

Total change in net assets tor internal service funds (979,291)
(979.291)
Change in net assets of governmental activities 5 6,986,639

See accompanying notes Lo the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets - June 30, 2011

Midwest Ciny Mualelp Dl Noucosjor loternal
Waler Sewer Coalerence Center! Dralaage Sen e Exnterprise Stk
Fund Foad Hotel Food Fuad Fuod Foods Todal Fracds
ANMETS:
Currou assety
Cash god cash ouavalents 3 &91.142 4 2RIz 4 5 T 364 5 295612 A2AH5R - ) 45,724 $ 5577042 5 136
Cash mnd «ash oqovalans. resincted o a - - . 1019.271 185,55 LAk -
Jnvesimentc 1608977 1276606 257027 FRIATS LIZ6rdR o 2120004 1.371.1% 24REX14
Avgounts nuoivable, et 1214206 =dL269 626 (4 241502 5520 A S T35 240 92 Ink
Other rixanvahly c a - 62,91 . A4 .2 14 551
Acvtual ot roucivable kL losish - 2545 25T L] kallb N Ti43
Tnventory 12414 94530 - 47122 - pLAY Y 45 4%
Thse from oty Tunke 218 1007 585 136496 - - - 5.975 1147 T4 -
Tuxal cmront assots 3,666,511 12144563 L12x.U71 19N 1Lo(x.279 L0I9.27% 14015 24874087 4422 300
Nonunod assols
Imcsiments. reanaal o D . 61,67 M3 6R7
Dy Erove oluy fuods o 1.7 764 1176939 D D D o AN15. T
LUinamonized bandd and mde issoe Losks - . o - - 67K - 45T
Land, uwmstnuixet o frogresy. and waler 1igds [RLEX:3)) IR2G65T 11140 ER TR 13326 TALAM 21815472 15.41%
Chlr capatal assets. mt 14,25) x50 23128 N) 2A54. 440 2504120151 11 Tk 477 - 102107 R2LU3L K15 10075 440
Toual nomeumTm assets 21.6H4.562 I RTIN.24T 4x11L51% 25605 1'H 10 ¥i30.¥()? 467,006 10619318 TIR.RO4 544 [NEL TR
Tot) axsots 2784063 ATY22R0S 4.90) 49 27.504.002 1540002 IELYALH] 14.1THATA 134.764 4011 5511
LIABILITIES:
Cumcnt [l
Agcounts peyablc and aoomed labhies 422 R4S 137.55 491,651 T07.744. - - 145,241 Lum 545 40059
Claims Jubwlay o a - o - . L&RN242
Wages payable 116,591 161162 26,324 TRRA2 LI A4 970 =57 g 91.23%
Do e otber Feruls - - - g 41217 47137
Acmund i pevabic o g o o : Hn 077 5 Tt 2
Accrou] amreozsatol ahemcs T 69,764 3IAAL 217 TASS - 42042 226 967 LI
Rofundaivde doposits 5 o &b.129 129 66y 195,94 -
Notex pavable kY 214 - - - B 189214 -
Revenuc bonkds payahle - - - - - 645 1001 o 65 I .
Total vaorerd labnbdees K19.715 3T AN4 ShilL KA FERT 20165 1107077 45K 859 TAHSNAT 24550
Noovwma hubehiue
Avurued Lomponsatol abuokas 2149 15% 530 67,12 4751 14 Tio nE g 45303 154219
Claums Labwiny D 2 o 5 o - - 2479
Upfondod OFER Insbahiey - - *URd S50
Dhu iy ot fienads. - LLAN W6 876 B
Refundeble deperts - - 1188 Rl Lieksiy -
Notes paysbe 1.029 790 - - Lo ey
Boverne bopih payable. nec = a = a o 25,0606 213 - 25.0M 212 -
Todal noocurront labwires 1171939 [19.5% 62,702 4.7 14.010 25,604,215 2U6IIRTY 063,112 6612600
Total bubshtcs L9624 2o fdH 520 180544 14275 26 707 2490 25008 T2 668, 167 W 4% 202
NET ANSETS:
Invesiod 1 capeial ansess, eid of rolated dobd 22 46%.550 2719417 168 400 25 0% |94 13800 Wik (61500 MM 116 TR 217716 1080753
Rostrwtod fiw dobt serviy: - JEGUS{ Y - 1.039.17H .
Restnued for oiher raposcs o E E = S a 216 104 206.0% o
Unrostraed 2RY1431 152768 1650452 1 649,164 - 2ATK 404 25 620 255 .55 winy
Tuoda) oot avsens 5 25.9613KY 3 4241% 78S $  SALoar 3 27254 318 (25241 105) 31150 v36 102,101,232 3 (LS8
Socoy ansno s reportal fir loiness-ivpe snvies 1o te of Net Assats are dfToran bousiee cor silamal some

i babiskis afc ibchaded wath brsstess-Lyge Soirvities and Feporiod & ingerfund balamess.

Touusl nos assess per Govormmerd - Wide finamal sta oments

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Proprietary Funds Statement of Changes in Net Assets - Year Ended June 30, 2011

Operatiog Revenunes:
Charges fiy services
Foes, I enses anud pormits
Mugdlanaogs
Total uporatmg Tevenes

QOpersting Espeosen;
Ferunial senkes
Aaienals and sapplies
Orhwer sarvices and charpes
Insurance clatns apd expense
Doprociation and amoriizaion
Tolal operaimp exponses
Oparaimg meomy: {hss)
Noo-Opersiing Revenoes (Expenser):
o cstEnenr muomh
Intoremt cxponse and fisual charges
Oty Don-operaling 1oy coue
Tolal RON-UPCTALOE FUv ETUCS {CXPENSs)
Net monme (hoss b befong transfers.

Tramsfears in
Transfors vut

Chavge o oet asset1
Totsl oet atstts - heglonlog

Total pet zasets + ending

Chaope 1 el &s34ts Por above:

wertain intomal sk c funds s coponal with Tusmees- e acviiies

AMidwest Clty Aotbordty Dbt Noomajor Internal
Waler Sewer Sacltation Coaferroce Cenler/ Dralosge Service Enterprise Servke
Foud Food Fund lloiel Fond Food Food Foods Total Funds
(951,158 5 5,754,756 L I K Py L] 3 4566970 b1 W 9xe % - § 204,332 s 240267 LRI AR A ]
CXITT] s - - o S 1345 .
1 Lo 1564 - 4 - - 4u x5 171.5%%
£.994. 7T 5.765.001 4420019 4566 9T 04,170 - 2050152 RN BRS6 [9Y
Lxan, 126 A2, 1iMuATY 1. W%, 125 5201 - 131268y 9 34N,254 1,554,285
410209 593255 S6d1, 560 LAT250 lo243d a IE 417540 1249254
1L25% WIS %12 LANY, Sk 1.272.45% K5.276 - 184 8001 RXUEES 171,241
: a a o : a o 7179166
Sah.052 1.113.271 20.0x) 1.036.74% 253498 121,651 %277 1TIRATT Sn4uL
4.118.74% 5754, 71 132279 5,850,252 HI5AI 121.65% 194451 21.52H.0%6 10,253,716
2.860,03% 118 [l 223 19N 262y 1261.135) (121L65Y 55,851 2,060,434 (1.397.523)
45,653 A48 UK LR QX0 4100 1,675 K5 kKT frd Ul 550
13R.467) a - (L347,671) 155 0kY) 11,441.227
2. o ki - 25110 274914
7166 A56,4%1 30,700 YRR 15404 (L3455 55,40 1749,30%) 9,554
ZNTRIN &EX 0TS LISLyny (FLATY (226,271 (LABT 60 111749 1917611 (1,300,967
42200 AL - 1,990.%5% SILTAL 2uK7.651 [%768
(LAPARANM ) ARAK, X0 (o196 (161.217) - - (7.7143 L3, 1M1, 717) {52,000)
2197021 L ROS) TERA 11.234.65) (226.271) 511,209 6154246 1,5(M 545 (117,199
23, 166,30% 42,762, 18% LR REY L 2% 5K, 4N 1562071 (25,751,314} 10,9%3,L10 Timn 296,687 (2 I07,u54)
2503, 344 S d2AL5TRS 1 5,317,062 5 27,254,735k § IS 37507 § 3% JHE 105 ) § L1LSU% 4910 K 102101232 4 (3,445,151)
—
5 1504, 545
Some ameamts Feporied for busiress-typy actielies in thy Stalement of Avinaues are differan bocarse the nel revmiy of
LIST. %)
4 14400617

Change m Birsaness: Type Acinalus m Nt Assels por Governma - W sde Fiiumicial Statenants

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Proprietarv Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2011

Midwert Cliy Manlclpal Aotberity (L Nopmujar Internal
Water Sewer Sanltetlon Conference Coater’ Dralusge Service Foterprise Aervlee
Fopd kond Fond Hoid bond hapd Foed Fondy Totsl Fuads
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recaapls rm cusiontds 3 ATEVANR § STRLI60 3 43790 s LUL RS 3 AT 3 - LI K21 4 2944041 & HEIRINS
Prmeniy to suppieTs (R 1 GATTINY 1,577 126161 242 060) = (RER,“T1) [CIEIR ST (1LAIS 78
I'synucols # emphevocs (1835467 (INZLETE) (LI 1LH42.554) (209725 - (1.2713.544) (9.22004] (1.541.797)
Roueapte (Peviuenis) trom mieriund kan IALE L AAR7 7RI 191362 o (14n.107) ALRTH (14350
Kineipt of coxtomer doposis - - - - SIZARR 512401 -
Retam of customer Jepurits - - - - (459175 145%.17%) -
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See accompanying notes to the basic Anancial statements.
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Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements:

1. Financial Reporting Entity

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City of Midwest City (the “City”™) complies with the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting
Entity” and includes all component units for which the City is financially accountable/fiscally
responsible. The City’s financial reporting entity primary government presentation includes the City of
Midwest City and certain component units as follows:

The City of Midwest City — operates the public safety, health and welfare, streets and highways, parks
and recreation, and administrative activities

The City of Midwest City is an incorporated municipality located in central Oklahoma. The City
operates under a council-manager form of government with a charter that provides for three branches
of government;

¢ Legislative — the governing body includes an elected seven-member City Council and Mayor

¢ Executive — the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City
Council

e Judicial — the Municipal Judges are practicing attorneys appointed by the City Council

Blended Component Units (separate legal entities for which the City Council is fiscally responsible,
and for which the City Council members serve as the trustees/governing body of the entity):

Midwest City Utilities Authority —created for industrial development.

Midwest City Municipal Authority —~ created to operate the water, wastewater, sanitation and
conference center/hotel.

Midwest City Hospital Authority — created to operate the hospital and manage activities related to
the hospital lease.

Urban Renewal Authority — created for economic development.

Each of these component units listed above are Public Trusts established pursuant to Title 60 of
Oklahoma State law. Public Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power. The Authorities are generally
created to finance City services through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt
and to enable the City Council to delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the
Authority. In accordance with state law, the City Council must approve, by two-thirds vote, all debt
obligations of these public trusts prior to incurring the obligation. The Authorities generally retain title
to assets which are acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other Authority generated resources.
In addition, the City has leased certain existing assets at the creation for the Authorities to the Trustees
on a long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trusts, receives title to any residual assets
when a Public Trust is dissolved.

2. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
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principles. The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City’s financial
condition and changes therein at two distinct levels:

o The City as a Whole (a government-wide presentation)
e The City’s Funds (a presentation of the City’s major and aggregate non-major funds)

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of
activities;

Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire,
general administration, streets, parks and recreation. Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities — Services where the City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most
of the cost of these services it provides. The City’s water, sewer, sanitation systems and the
hotel/conference center activities are reporied here.

The statements of net assets and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic
resources measurement focus. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
carned and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used.

For business-type activities, Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB
prevails.

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds:

Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances lefi at year-end that are available for spending.
Governmental funds report their activities on the modified accrual basis of accounting and current
financial resources measurement focus that is different from other funds. For example, these funds
report the acquisition of capital assets and payments for debt principal as expenditures and not as
changes to asset and debt balances. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental
fund information helps you determine (through a review of changes to fund balance) whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.
The City’s governmental funds include:
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Major Funds:

» General Fund — accounts for all activities not accounted for in other special-purpose funds.
For reporting purposes the General Fund includes the activities of the Reimbursed Projects
Fund, Employee Activity Fund, Activity Fund, Animals Best Friend Fund, and Disaster
Retlief Fund.

e Police Fund — is a special revenue fund that accounts for police services funded by sales tax,
a transfer of 34.21% of General Fund revenues per ordinance legally restricted for police
operations, and fines and fees restricted for traffic enforcement operations. For reporting
purposes, the Police Fund includes the Jail Fund.

e Fire Fund — is a special revenue fund that accounts for fire protection services funded by
sales tax legally restricted for fire operations and a transfer of 27.66% of General Fund
revenues.

o Midwest City Hospital Authority — is a special revenue fund that manages activities related
to the hospital lease funded by interest income and in lieu of taxes.

e Tax Increment Financing Fund — is a special revenue fund that accounts for activity related
to the 29" Street Downtown Redevelopment project funded by tax apportionment revenue.

Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds):

Special Revenue Funds include Grants, Juvenile, Parks and Recreation, Emergency Operations,
Technology, Welcome Center, Police Impound Fees, Street and Alley, Police Special Projects, Police
Lab Fee, Convention/Visitors Bureau, and Urban Renewal Authority Funds.

Debt Service Fund — accounts for ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for use in retiring general
obligation bonds, and their related interest expenses.

Capital Project Funds:

¢ Capital Improvement Fund - accounts for assessed fees that help fund capital projects for
various functions of the City.

¢ Capital Outlay Fund — accounts for equipment, vehicies, computers and building repairs for
governmental funds.

¢ Downtown Redevelopment Fund — accounts for the lease proceeds from the 29™ street
redevelopment. Proceeds are used to fund various needs of the city.

e 2002 Street Project Fund — accounts for the proceeds from the 2002 General Obligation
Street Bonds which funds capital street projects.

o Street Project Fund — accounts for the sales tax restricted for street projects.

e Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund — accounts for sales tax restncted by a vote of the
citizens for debt retirement related to capital improvemenis.

» Capital Outlay Reserve Fund — accounts for funds set aside to fund the five year capital
needs projects.

The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when eamed and measurable and available to pay
current financial obligations, while expenditures are recorded when incurred and nommally due and
payable from current financial resources. The City defines revenue availability as collected within 60
days of period end.
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The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level.

Proprietary Funds:

When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and intemnal service funds. Enterprise
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. Internal service
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to other funds or departments of the
City. Proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources
measurement focus. For example, proprietary fund capital assets are capitalized and depreciated and
principal payments on long-term debt are recorded as a reduction to the liability. For the enterprise
funds, Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles
Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

The City’s proprietary funds include the following:

Enterprise Fund

Major:

e« Water Fund (includes the Water Operating Fund and the Water Capital Projects Fund} accounts
for the activities providing water services to the public. Included in Midwest City Municipal
Authority

e Sewer Fund (includes the Sewer Operating Fund and the Sewer Capital Projects Fund) accounts
for the activities providing sewer services to the public. Included in Midwest City Municipal
Authority

» Sanitation Fund (includes the Sanitation Operating Fund) accounts for the activitiecs providing

sanitation services to the public. Included in Midwest City Municipal Authority

Conference Center/Hotel Fund (includes the Conference and Hotel Operating Fund) accounts
for the activities related to the Conference Center and Hotel. Included in Midwest City
Mumnicipal Authority

Drainage Fund (includes the Drainage Operating Fund and the Capital Projects Fund) accounts
for the activities providing drainage services to the public.

¢ Debt Service Fund accounts for the debt activities related to the 2003 Revenue Bonds.

Non-Major;

e Utilities Authority Fund —accounts for industrial development activities.

o Utility Services Fund — accounts for aclivities related to billing for water, sewer, sanitation,
storm water, and drainage.

¢ Utilities Capital Fund — accounts for capital purchases for the water, sewer, and sanitation
systems.

s Customer Deposit Fund —accounts for utility customer deposits.

» Golf Course Fund —accounts for activities of the John Conrad and the Hidden Creek golf courses.

e 29™ and Douglas —accounts for activities of the trailer park at 29" and Douglas.
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Internal Service Funds (combined for reporting purposes)

Risk Management Fund - accounts for the cost of providing various insurance services (i.e
workers compensation, general liability, vehicle and property) to other funds and departments
of the City

Public Works Administration Fund - accounts for the cost of centralization of administrative
resources to various departments of the City. This fund primarily serves the business-type
activities.

Fleet Services Fund - accounts for fuel, maintenance and repairs for the city’s fleet.

Surplus Property Fund - accounts for the disposal of surplus property on behalf of all
departments.

L&H Benefits Fund - accounts for health and life benefits to employees and retirees.
Beginning in fiscal year 2009 accounts for the City's unfunded OPEB liability.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents, Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less, and money market investments.
Trust account investments in open-ended mutual fund shares are also considered cash equivalents.

Investments consist of long-term certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, and U.S.
agency securities. Certificates of deposit are reported at cost, while the U.S. Treasury and agency
securities and are reported at fair value.

Deposits and Investments Risks

The City of Midwest City primary government and blended component units are governed by the
deposit and investment limitations of state law and trust indentures. The deposits and investments
held at June 30, 2011 by these entities are as follows:

Schedule of Deposits and Investments by Tyvpe - June 3, 2011

Matunne in Yars

Far On Less AMore
Tipe Value Demand Than Onc 1-4 - Lk than 10
Deamand deposila 3 laxdel™y 4 l4M49270 3 - s - % - %
Time deponits 16,520,307 - 1LEITXR] 2,702426
Crovernment Money Market Accounts 1408943 LADS Y -
LS. Agenacics Obligations 21.045,377 - - - 353,011 17,524,266
Sub-Totsl SRR40,047 3 16258.21% 5§ 13n07.x51 $ 2702426 3 LS6IL 17,829,266

Hespral JP Motgan
Other Investments
Tota] Deposits and Invesmmenta

Reconcitiadon 1o Flnanclal Sistements:

Cash and cash equivalents
Invesiments

A9 569,320
[275.579

114.4K5, T

Per repont

16255212
PH. 4058

114.688.796

Custodial Credit Risk — Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized; collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name; or collateralized
without a written or approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to

34



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

investments exists when the City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities
held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

The City's policy as it relates to custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral,
valued at no more than market value, at a minimum level of 110% of the uninsured deposits and accrued
interest thereon. The City’s policy limits acceptable collateral to U.S. Treasury securities, federally
insured obligations, or direct debt obligations of municipalities, counties, and school districts in
Oklahoma. Also, as required by Federal 12 U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all financial institutions pledging
collateral to the City must have a written collateral agreement approved by the board of directors or loan
commitiee.

At June 30, 2011, the City had no exposure to custodial credit risk as defined above.

Investment Credit Risk — The City’s investment policy limits investments, excluding Hospital Authority,
to the following;

a. Obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities;

b. Collateralized or insured non-negotiable certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit that are
either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with an in-state financial institution, and fully
insured deposits in out-of-state institutions;

c. Insured or fully collateralized negotiable certificates of deposit;

d. Repurchase agreements that have underlying collateral consisting of those items specified in
paragraph a above; and

e. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments
mentioned in the previous paragraph a.

Investment credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterpart to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City has no formal policy limiting investments based on credit rating, but discloses any
such credit risk associated with their investments by reporting the credit quality ratings of investments in
debt securities as determined by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations—rating agencies—
as of the year end. Unless there is information to the contrary, obligations of the U.S. government or
obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do
not require disclosure of credit quality.

Investmenr Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. The City’s investment policy indicates that the investment
portfolio, shall remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to meet all operating requirements as
anticipated. The Cily discloses its exposure to interest rate risk by disclosing the maturity dates of its
various investments by date range.

As noted in the schedule of deposits and investments above, at June 30, 2011, the investments held by the
City mature between 2011 through 2023.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - Exposure to concentration of credit risk is considered to exist
when investments in any one issuer represent a significant percent of tolal investments of the City (any
over 5% are disclosed). Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and
investments in mutual funds, external investment pocls, and other pooled investments are excluded from
this consideration.
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Hospital Authority Investments:

The Authority policy provides that assets be invested to preserve its principal, produce a proscribed level
of income, and provide for growth of principal with no outside additions to the fund being anticipated.
Assets are 1o be invested in a diversified portfolio to achieve attractive real rates of return. The
investment policy of the Hospital Authority allows for the investment of funds in domestic and
international common stocks, govermment and corporate bonds, short-term fixed income securities
maturing in one year or less (cash equivalents); by utilizing primarily index funds, mutual funds, or
collective trust funds. In addition, the Authority may invest portions of the fund corpus, or income, in
real estate. Such real estate investments would typically include developed or undeveloped real property
located in Midwest City, Oklahoma or its environs, or commingled funds which invest in various kinds of
property located throughout the United States. The overall rate of return objective of the portfolio is a
highest possible rate of return consistent with the risk levels established by the Board.

The acceptable long-term rate of return is expected to provide equal or superior results, using a three to
five year moving average, refative to the following benchmarks:

An absolute retumn objective of the Consumer Price Index plus 4% compounded annually.

An income return sufficient to meet any disbursement requirement as stipulated by the Board.

A return exceeding the 90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill rate (risk-free rate)/

Domestic equity fund retums which exceed the S&P 500 Stock index return by 1% (100 basis

points), per year and fixed income return which exceed the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond

Index by 2% per year (50 basis points).

5. Stock and bond returns which fall into the top 25% of the Consultant’s Universe (or other
representative universe approved by The Board) of commmeon stock and bond funds (referred to
as equity and fixed income}, with some consistency.

6. Passive domestic returns which replicate the return of the Standard and Poor’s 500 Stock
Index, passive fixed returns which replicate the return of the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond
Index, and passive international returns which replicate the return of the MSCI EAFE
International Index.

7.  Active international equity returns which exceeds the MSCI EAFE Index by 1% per year.

= B0 8 =

Asset allocation guidelines for the Plan are as follows:

Class Target Maximum June 2011 Percent
Equities — Domestic 2.0%-60% 85% 61.2%
Equities — International 2.5%-10% 30% 8.8%
Fixed Income 2.5%-25% 80% 10.5%
Real Estate 0% 20% 0%
Cash Equivalents 0% 36% 14.3%
Emerging Markets 2.5%-5% 10% 5.2%

At June 30, 2011, the City had complied with the investment policies as defined above.
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Restricted Cash and Investments

The amounts reported as restricted assets of the Enterprise Funds on the statement of net assets are
comprised of amounts held by the Midwest City Proprietary Debt Service accounts of the trustee bank for
revenue bond retirement, and the Customer Deposit Fund account for refundable deposits held by others.
The restricted assets as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Pooled Cash Restricted for Debt Service § 1019271

Pooled Cash Restricted lor Refundable Deposits 355,509
3 1374780

[nvestments.

Pooled [nvestments Restricted for Refundable Deposits 963.687

3 963,687

4, Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital Assets:

For the primary government and component units, capital assets are reported at actual or estimated
historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation where applicable. Donated capital assets are reported at
their fair value at date of donation. Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the capital
assets acquired prior to June 30, 1992, The capitalization threshold is capital assets with a cost of $1,000
or more.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, capital assets balances changed as follows:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2010 Additions Deductions June 30, 2011
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Crovernmenial activities:
Capital assets not1 being depreciated:
Land g 29,085,911 3 1,239,410 $ 2 $ 301,325,321
Construction in progress 2,288,720 2,090,937 685,598 3,694,059
Toual capital assels not being depreciated 31.374.631 3.330.347 685,598 34,019,380
Other capital assels.
Buildings 21,635,900 1,911,451 - 23,547,351
Machinery and equipment 15,143,090 599,973 12,083 15,730,980
Vehicles 6,561,449 1,075,119 514,459 7,122,109
Infrastructure 426,194,703 1,288,297 - 427,483,000
Tolal other capital assets at historical cost 469,535,142 4,874,840 526,542 473,883,440
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 7,046,905 471,000 - 7.517,905
Machinery and equipment 9,882,208 793,432 7,175 10,668,465
Vehicles 4,002,635 441,845 508,761 3,935,769
[nfrastruciure 109,624,476 11.932.617 - 121,557.G93
Tolal accumulated depreciation 130,556,274 13,638.894 515,936 143,679,232
Other capitnl assets, net 338.978.868 (8.764.054) 10,606 330,204,208
Governmental aclivities capital assets, nel 3 370,353,499 5 (5.433.707) § 696,204 $ 364,223,588
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Balance at

Balance at

July 1,2019 Additions Deductions June 30,2011
Business-type activities:

Capiltal assets not being depreciated:

Land 3 7.549,649 5 - ) - 7,549,649

Waler rights 4,672,610 - - 4,672,610

Construction in progress 4.091,375 7.788.218 2,586,420 9,293,173

Tolal capital assets not being depreciated 16,313,634 7,788,218 2,586,420 21,515,432

Other capital assets:

Buildings 28.644,978 167,577 - 28,812,555

Machinery and equipment 10,194,258 846,168 18,399 11,022,027

Vehicles 5.739,774 30,000 107,572 5,662,202

Utility systerms 08,979,769 1,989,106 - 100,268,875

Total other capital assets at historical cost 143,558,779 3,032,851 125,971 146,465,659

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 5,704,316 685,381 - 6,389.697

Machinery and equipment 5,468,867 604,745 18,399 6,055,213

Vehicles 3,313,781 290,495 107.572 3,496,704

Utility systems 46,271,595 2,027.478 = 48.299,073
Total accumulated depreciation 60,758,559 3,608,099 125,971 64,240,687
Other capital assets, net 82,800,220 (575.248) - $2.224.972
Business-type activities capital assets, net 5 99,113,854 1) 7.212,970 3 2,586,420 103,740,404

Depreciation:

Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. The range of

estimated lives by type of assets is as follows:

e Buildings/improvements 25-60 years
o Utility systems 25-99 years
e Infrastructure 25-99 years
e Machinery and equipment 5-20 years
e  Vehicles 5-25 years

Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. Depreciation expense has been allocated as

follows:

Governmental Activitics:
General Government
Public Safety
Streets
Culture and Recreation
Healih and Welfare
Economic development
Sub-total governmental funds depreciation

Depreciation on capital assets held by the

City's intemnal service funds is charged

to the various functions based upon usage
Total
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Business-Type Activities:

Water 5 566,052
Sewer 1,313,271
Sanitation 310,081
Drainage 252,495
Conference Center/Hotel 1,036,748
Golf 118,277

Total Business Type Activities 3,596,924
Depreciation on capital assets held by the
City's internal service funds is charged
to the various functions based upon usage 11,175

Total $ 3,608.099

5. Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers
Internal and Interfund Balances:

The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund receivable and payables between funds in the statement of
net assets to avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances due between governmental
and business-type activities are reported as internal balances and then offset in the total column,
Interfund receivables and payabies at June 30, 2011 were as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount Nature of Interfund Balance
General Fund Comm Dev Block Grant S 49,009  To cover negalive balance in pooled cash
General Fund Grant Fund'Housing 5.159  To cover negative balance in povled cash
General Fund Grant Fund 30,695  To cover negative balance in pooled cash
Police Fund Genenal Fund 1.054,36Y  Restricted sales lax payable
Police Fund Police Special Projects 8380 T cover operational grant cost
Fire Fund General Fund B52.495  Restricled sales tax payable
Hospital Authority 29th and Douglas 660,547 Long-term loan
Capital Qutlay Fund Grani Fund #4869  To cover operational grant cosi
Capital Improvements Fund Grant Fund 20.762  To cover operational grant cost
Fleet Services Fund Grant Fund 14.551  To cover operational grant cost
Sewer Construction Fund Tax Increment Financing Fund 4,741,620  Long-term loan for economic improvements
Sanilation Fund Fire Capitalization Fund 1.122.787  Long-term loan for capital improvements
Sanitation Fund Golff Fund 190,749  Long-term loan for capital improvemnents
Water Fund Customer Deposits Fund 2318 Meter deposil liability
Golf Fund Grant Fund 5,975 To cover operational grant cost
M 8,853,285
Due From Due To Net [nfernal

Reconeiliation to Fund Finaneial Statemenis: Other Funds Other Funds Balances

Govermmental Funds $ 2775286 8 7.999.672 < (5,224,386)

Proprietary Funds 6,063,448 851,613 5,209,835

Internal Service Fund 14,551 - 14,551

Total $ 8.853,285 % R.853.285 5 -

Reconciliation to Statement ol Net Assets:

Net Internal Balances S 5,209,835

Internal Service Fund Activity reporied in Business-type Aclivities (1,184,452)

Net Internal Balance $ 4,025,383
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Internal and Interfund Transfers:

The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfers between funds in the statement of activities to
avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances transferred between governmental and
business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and then offset in the total column. Internal
activities between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2011 were as follows:

Transfer In Transfer Qut Amount Nature ol 1nterfund Transfer
CGeneral Fund Fire Fund s 88,000 Code Goforcement Allocation
General Fund Stonn Water Quality Fund 41,907  Indirect Cost Allocation
General Fund Sanitation Fund 763,936 Indirect Cost Allocation
Gemeral Fund Water Fund 748,459  Indirect Cost Allocation
General Fund Sewer Fund 772,099  Indirect Cost Allocation
Street and Alley Fund Water Fund 350,545 Reimburse Repair Cost
Technology Fund Emergency Operations Fund 40,658  Contract Cost Allocation
Reimbursed Projects Fund Convention Visitor Burcan Fund 1,586 Operating Subsidy
Reimbursed Projecis Fund Capital lmprovensent Fund 20,000  Operating Subsidy
Reimbursed Projects Fund Downlown Redevelopment Authority 35,000  Operating Subsidy
Police Fund General Fund 9.177.307  Ordinance Obligation
Fire Fund Cieneral Fund 7340480 Ordinance Obligation
Convention Visitor Bureau Fund Welcome Center Fund 1400  Operating Subsidy
Emergency Management Fund Grants Fund 26,200  Granl Subsidy
Activity Fund Grant Fund 4,321  Operating Subsidy
Activity Fund Hospital Authority 13365 Opemting Subsidy
Community Development Block Grant General Fund 65559  City Match of CDBG Program
Grant Fund General Fund 140,533 City Match of Weed and Seed Gram
Girant Fund Police Impound Fees 5,738 Operating Subsidy
Disaster Reliel’ Grants FFund 33,665  Grant Subsidy
Capital Outlay Fund Genetal Fund 12,315 Capital Outlay Subsidy
Capital Outlay Fund Stonn Water Quality Fund 2600 Capital Qutlay Subsidy
Capital Outlay Fund Public Works Admin 49000 Capital Qutlay Subsidy
Capilal Outlay Fund Tleel 3000 Capital Quilay Subsidy
Capital Cutley Fund Grant Fund 528.772  Capital Outlay Subsidy
Capital Qutlay Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 390,775  Capital Cutlay Subsidy
Capital OQutlay I'und (.0.Debl Services 32,170 Capital Quilay Subsidy
Police Capitalization Fund Capiisl Qutlay Fund 750 Capital Outlay Subsidy
('apital Improvement Fund Grant Fund 838,331 Capital Cuilay Subsidy
C'apital Improvement Fund Conference Center * Hotel Fund 60,000 Capilal Outlay Subsidy
Fleet Grant Fund 14,551 Grant Subsidy
L & H benelit Conference Center - Hotel Fund 1,217 Operating Subsidy
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Transler 1n Transfer Out Amount Nuture of lnterfund Transfer
Tratler Park Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authotity 80,546 Debt Service Subsidy
Construction Loan Pavraent Revenue Grant Fund 415,110 Caputal Outlay Subsidy
Criluy Capualization Fund Capital Cutlay Fund 175,000  Capial Outlay Subssdy
Uniluy Capualization Fund Storm Water Quality Fund 52,260  Capital Oullay Subsidy
Livituy Capitabzation Fund Grant Fund 198,000  Capital Outlay Subsudy
Water I'und Customer Deposits Fund 7.714  Interest Eamings
Sewer Fund Grant Fund 54,188  Granl Subsidy
Golf Fund Grant Fund 5975  Granl Subsidy
Capual Improvemnent Revenue Bond Fund Revenue Bond Sinkmg Fund 1,998,858  Debt Service Subsidy
S 20161900
Transfers o Transfers rom Net
Reconcihation (o Fund Financial Stalements: Other Funds Other Fumnids Transfers
Govemnmental Funds 5 2158481 21,009,163y 3 149318
Emerpnise Funds 2,957,651 (3,100,737 (113.080)
Internal Service Funds 15,708 {52.000) (36.232)
Totals } 24,161,900 § (24,161,990 8§ B
Reconicitiauon 1o Stateinem of Actvities:
Net Transfers H 149,318
Internal Service Fund Acliviiy {36,.232)
Transfers - Internal Actrvity 5 112,086

6. Long-Term Debt

The City’s long term debt consists of general obligation bonds, note payable, and accrued compensated
absences. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City’s long-term debt balances changed as follows:

Primary Government:

Type of Deht

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds
Note Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences

Total Governmental Activities

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets:
Plus: OPEB Obligation
Refundable Deposits

Business-Type Activities:
Notes Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable
Revenue Bonds Premium
Revenue Bond Delerred Amount on Refunding
Refundable Deposils
Accrued Compensated Absences

Total Business-Type Activitics

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2010 Additions Deductions June 3, 2011 One Year
§ 11,100,000 - $ 1,400,000 § 9,700,000 $ 1400000

25016465 - 293,566 24,722 899 486,425
3.610.901 1.793.150 1.576.592 3.827.459 1,283,503

§ 39,727,366 [,793,150 § 3,270,158 38,250,358 3,169,928
3,984,559 “

72,432 72432

5 42,307,349 5 3,242,360

§ 1,402,897 - S 183,893 $ 1,219,004 $ 189,214
27,375,000 - 635,000 26,740,000 655,000
369,684 - 15,958 353,726 -
(950,961) - (116,449) {834,512) -
1,316,154 512,463 463,800 1,364,817 165,998
709.653 583.548 512,523 780.678 260,226

$§ 30,222,427 1,096.011 5 1.694.725 § 29,623,713 §  1,300.438
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Governmental activities long-term debt payable from property tax levies or other governmental revenues
includes the following;:

General Obligation Bonds:

$4,500,000 general obligation bonds dated May 1, 2006 for public safety, payable in
annual installments of $275,000 the first year and $325.000, thereafter, with interest
rates of 3.75% to 3.95%, repaid by property tax levies. Current portion $325.000. $3,250,000

$£15,000,000 general obligation bonds dated February 1, 2002 for street improvements,
payable in annual installments of $1,025,000 in the first year and $1,075,000,
thereafter, with interest rates of 5.00% to 5.25%, repaid by property tax levies.
Current portion $1,075,000. 6.450,000

Total general obligation bonds $9,700,000

Current $1,400.000
Non-current 8.300.000

Total $9,700,000

Notes Payable:

$25,000,000 construction loan for hospital addition, payable in monthly installments beginning
December 2010 of $154,710; final payment due November 2019 of $19,773,124; interest
rate equal to the variable rate equal to the “Prime Rate,” as quoted in the Money Rates
Section of TheWall Street Journal, adjusted daily, with a minimum interest rate of five
And one-half percent (5.50%) per annum and a maximum interest rate of eleven percent
(11%) per annum with payments adjusted annually; current rate is 5.5%: construction
Interest rate of 5.5%. Secured by a first morigage lien on the property.
Current portion $486,425 $24.722 899

Total notes payable $24,722,899

Current 5486425
Non-current 24236474
Total £24,722,899

Business-type activities long-term debt payable from net revenues generated by and taxes pledged to the
City’s business-type activities include the following:

Revenue Bonds Payable:

$29.870,000 Series 2003 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, due in annual principal
Installments of $70,000 to $1,905,000 through September 1, 2033, with interest rates
from 2.95% to 5.375%. $26,740,000
Unamortized Revenue Bond Premium 353,726
Unamortized Gain (Loss) on Refunding {(834,512)
Total Revenue Bonds, Net 526,259,214

Current $655,000
Non-current 26.085,000

Total $26,740.000
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Notes Payable:

£3,222.911 contract payable with the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District
maturing October 1, 2016 . The contract provides the City with a share of the
District’s water supply. The City pays its share of the costs of the facilities and
its operations to the District. The City has pledged water revenues to secure this

obligation. Debt principal payments are due annually, with interest at 2.742%. $1,219,004

Current $189,214
Non-current 1.029,790
Total $1,219,004

Long-term debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental-Type Activities

G.0. Bonds Payable

Notes Pavable

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal [nterest

2012 5 1,400,000 S 458938 5 4864235 $ 1376104

2013 1,400,000 392,350 518,036 1,338,493

2014 1,400,000 325,763 547.673 1,308,856

2015 1.400,000 259175 579,006 1,277,523

2016 1,400,000 189,900 608,693 1,247,835
2017-2021 2,700,000 249.000 21,983.066 3,978,488
Total 3 9.700.000 $ 1,875,126 $24,722,899 $ 10,521,299

Business-Type Aclivities

Notes Payable

Revenue Bonds Payable

Y car Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 5 189,214 S 33425 S 655,000 S 1,344,231
2013 194,680 28,237 675,000 1,321,306
2014 200,601 22,899 700,000 1,296,669
2015 206,380 17,398 730,000 1,268,669
2016 212,039 11,739 770,000 1,230,344

2017-2021 216,090 5,925 4,485,000 5,502,274
2022-2026 - - 5,815,000 4,173,768
2027-2031 - - 7,470,000 2,517,250
2032-2034 - - 5,440,000 553.000

Total 8 1,219,004 S 119,623 $ 26,740.000 $ 19,207,511

Pledge of Future Revenues

Sales Tax Pledge - The City has pledged one-fourth of one percent {or .25%) of future sales tax revenues to
repay the 2003 Revenue Bonds which are payable through 2033. Proceeds from the bond provided
financing for construction and equipping the Sheraton Hotel and the Reed Conference Center. The total
principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of the bond is $45,947,511. Pledged sales taxes
received in the current year was $2,056,990. Debt service payments of $1,982,671 for the current fiscal
year were 96% of pledged sales tax. Other sources of revenues such as water and sewer are also pledged.
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Utility Revenue Pledge — The City has pledged the revenues from the future sale of water to repay the
Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District note payable which is payable through 2016. Proceeds from the
note provided funding for improvements and expansion of the water transportation and distribution system. The
total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of the bond is $1,338,627. Waler revenues received
in the current year was $6,953,355. Debt service payments of $222,360 for the current fiscal year were 3.2% of
pledged water revenue.

7. Net Assets and Fund Balances
Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:
Net assets are displayed in three components:
a.  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, comstruction, or
improvements of those assets.
b.  Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments,

or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “‘restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

It is the City’s policy to first use unrestricted net assets prior to the use of restricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net asset are available,

The following table shows the net assets restricted for other purposes shown on the Statement of Net
Assets:
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Fund Restricted By Amount

Hospital Authority Enabling legislation 5 62,517,491
Technology Fund Enabling legislation 460,661
Police hnpound Fund Enabling legislation 73,771
Urban Renewal Authority Enabling legislation 15,498
Capital Qullay Reserve Fund Enabling legislalion 1,047,754
General Fund Enabling legislation 28.042

5 64,143.217
Street and Alley Fund Statutory requirements § 1.037.613
Juvenile Fund Statutory requirements 165,115
Police Special Projects Statutlory requirements 156,161
Police Lab Fee Statutory requirements 32,254
General Fund Statutory requirements 470,117

3 1,861,260
Grant Fund External contracts s 239,538
General Fund External contracls 470,117
General Fund External contracts 28.042
Police Fund Exiernal contracts 3,220,405
Fire Fund Exiemnal contracts 812,506
Park and Recreation Fund External contracts 493,884
Emergency Operation Fund External contracts 757.019
Welcome Center External contracts 262,251
Convention and Visilors Bureau External contracts 80,613
GO Debt Service Fund Extemal contracis 1,593,431
Capital Outlay Fund External contracis 2,290,024
2002 GO Street Bond External contracls 3,667,298
Downtown Redevelopment Extemnal contracts 1,348,686
Street Tax Fund External contracts 20,013
Sales Tax Capital Iimprovements External contracts 471,132

5 15,754,959

Governmental Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Since the City implemenied GASB Statement
34, fund balance is further classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.
These classifications are defined as:

a.  Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

b.  Restricted — consists of fund balance with constraints placed on the use of resources either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments,
or {2) laws through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Committed — included amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority, The
City’s highest level of decision-making authority is made by ordinance.

d.  Assigned - includes amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to be used for specific
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. Assignments of fund balance may be made by city
council action or management decision when the city council has delegated that authority.
Assignments for revenues in other governmental funds are made through budgelary process.

e Unassigned — represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund.
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It is the City’s policy to first use unrestricted fund balance prior to the use of the restricted fund
balance when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance are available. The City's policy for the use of fund balance amounts require that unassigned
amounts would be reduced first followed by assigned amounts and then commitied amounts when
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.

The following table shows the fund balance classifications as shown on the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet in accordance with GASB Statement 54:

| Major Special Revenue Fund | Other
General Police Flre Hospital Tax Increment  Governmenial
Fund Fund Fund Authority Financing Fund Total
Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ $ ) 3 - 5 - S 824,413 § R4 413
Prepaid expenses 3,180 - - = - - 3.180
3.180 - - - - 824413 827.593
Restricted For:
Police operations 28,042 3.055.694 - - - 106,025 3,189,761
Fire operations - - 812.506 - - - 812,506
Hospital - - 64.657.630 - . 64,657,630
Jail operations - 164,711 - - - - 164,711
General obligation debl service - - - - - [.504.619 1.504,619
Capital improvements . . - - - 5,092,252 5092252
Sireel improvements - - - - - 3,687,211 1,687,311
Slreel aperations - - - - - 1.037.613 1,037.613
Technology improvements - - - - - 460,681 460,681
Culture and rec programs 5433 - - - - 756,135 761.568
Economic development 435,778 - - - - 192,399 628,177
Health and wellare programs 1,455 - - - - - 1,455
General government programs 25451 . . 143,108 168,559
Juvenile public safety proprams - . - 165115 165.115
Police - drug programs - - - - 156,161 156,161
Emergency operations - - - - 757.019 757,019
Downlown redevelopment - - - - - 1,348,668 1,348.668
Sub-total restricted 498.159 3.220.405 §12.506 64.657.630 - 15.407.106  84.595.806
Assipned in-
Capital improvements - - - - - 25,691 25,691
Culture and rec programs 480,907 - - - - - 480,907
Downtlown redevelopment - - - . . 497,621 497,621
Disaster relicf 930.146 - - - - - 9130.146
Animal shelter 32,780 - - - - - 12,780
General government - encumbrances 29,630 - - = . - 29,610
Pablic safety - encumbrances 427 - . B - - 427
Public Works - encumbrances 59.855 - - - - - 59,855
Cuiture and rec - encumbrances 18,251 - - - - - 18,251
Economic development - encumbrances 47,312 - - - - “ 47,212
Sub-total assigned 1.599.308 - - - - 523312 2,122,620
Unassigned: 1.621,518 - - - {4,741.620) . {1.118,102)
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 5.724,165 & 3220405 §$ 812,506 §  64.657.630 § (4.741.620) S 16.754.831 S 86.427.917
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The following amounts of encumbrances are included in the previous page numbers at June 30, 2011:

Fund Balance
Major Funds:
‘General Fund i 218,920
Police Fund 236,012
Fire Fund 2.866
Hospital Authority 28.558
$ 486,356
Non Major Fund:
Capital Outlay Fund b 305,841
Street and Alley Fund 35,501
Technology Fund 14,540
Police Lab Fund 1473
Police Impound Fund 6,300
Welcome Center Fund 1,161
Convention and Visitor Bureau 17,300
Emergency Operations Fund 93,534
Park and Recreation Fund 59.635
Grant Fund 32,272
Capital Improvement Fund 88,749
Downtown Redevelopment Fund 80,325
2002 GO Street Bond Fund 98.529
§ 835.160

Per resolution, the City Council has established a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund
equal to ten percent (10%) of the fund’s budgetary operating expenditures each fiscal year. In addition,
a reserve equal to five percent (5%) of the budgetary operating expenditures for each fund has been
established for the following fund; Police Fund, Fire Fund, Welcome Center Fund, Convention and
Visitors Bureau Fund and the Juvenile Fund. The reserves are to ensure the fiscal solvency of the City
as a safeguard and all or a portion of the reserves may be appropriated by the city council as necessary
in the event of a natural disaster or other catastrophic circumstances, or in the event of significant
accounting errors.

8. Revenues

Program Revenues:

Program revenues within the statement of activities that are derived directly from each activity or from
parties outside of the City’s taxpayers are reported as program revenues. The City has the following
program revenues in each activity:

e Public Safety — Fire, Police, 911 —fines and forfeitures, restricted operating grants, 911
revenue, and restricted capital grants, property seizure

e Streeis — commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State.

¢ Culture and recreation — pool fees, rental of community center and senior center,
programming fees, park fees, softball fees, operating and capital grants

o Health and Welfare — FEMA grants

¢ Economic Development — rental income and operating grants

¢ General Government — license and permits, technology and false alarm fees, impact fees,
and operating grants

47



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

All other govermmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue
even if restricled for a specific purpose.

Sales Tax Revenue:

Sales tax revenue represents a 3.30 cents tax on each dollar of taxable sales of which is collected by the
Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City as follows:

The General Fund records 2.3805 cents. The Police and Fire Funds record .3195 and .2595,
respectively. The Emergency 911 fund records .0405, the Capital Improvement Fund .25 and the Park
and Recreation Fund .05.

Property Tax Revenue:

In accordance with state law, a municipality may only levy a property tax to retire general obligation
debt approved by the voters and to pay judgments rendered against the City. Property taxes levied by
the City are billed and collected by the County Treasurer's Office and remitted to the City in the month
following collection. Property taxes are levied normally in October and are due in equal installments
on December 31 and March 31. Properiy taxes unpaid for the fiscal year are attached by an
enforceable lien on property in the following October. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City's net
assessed valuation of taxable property was $284,605,074. The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of
net assessed valuation for the year ended June 30, 2011 was $6.62.

9. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural disasters. The City
manages these various risks of loss as follows:

e General Liability — Covered through self-insurance

e Physical Property — Covered through purchased insurance with a $25,000 deductible, per
occurrence.

s Workers® Compensation — Workers™ compensation is covered through self-insurance with the
City administering the claims process. The city does not carry stop loss insurance,

e Employee’s Group Medical —Covered through self-insurance using a third party administrator
to process medical claims. The City uses the third party processor’s estimates to record group
insurance claims payable. The City also has a stop-loss policy which covers individual claims
in excess of $150,000 during any year.

Management believes the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude any significant

uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.
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Claims Liability Analysis

The claims liabilities related to the above noted risks of loss that are retained are determined in
accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, which requires
that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. For the internal service self-insurance funds, changes in
the claims liability for the City from July 1, 2008, to June 30, 2011, are as follows:

Risk Health
Fund Care Total
Claim liability, June 30, 2008 3 2,861,000 5 602,000 $ 3,463,000
Claims and changes in estimates 1,449,535 6,150,134 7,599,669
Claims payments {1,049,535) (6,106.584) (7,156,119}
Claim liability, June 30, 2009 3,261,000 645,550 3,906,550
Claims and changes in estimates 2,493 468 5,734,064 8,227,532
Claims payments {1,972.468) {5.910,317) (7.882,785)
Claim liability, June 30, 2010 3,782,000 469,297 4,251,297
Claims and changes in estimates 925,173 6,156,838 7,082,011
Claims payments (901,173) (6,277,993) {7,179,166)
Claim liability, June 30, 2011 3 3,806,000 5 348,142 $ 4,154,142

10. Retirement Plan Participation
The City of Midwest City participates in three pension or retirement plans:
1. Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) - a statewide cost-sharing plan
2. Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) — a statewide cost-sharing plan

3. Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF-DCP) — an agent multiple-employer defined
contribution plan

Oklahoma Firefighter’s and Police Pension and Retirement Systems
The City of Midwest City, as the employer, participates in two statewide cost-sharing multiple
employer defined benefit plans on behalf of the firefighters and police officers. The systems are

funded by contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state
appropriations, as necessary.
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Oblaining separatcly issued
financial stalements

Eligility Lo participate

Authority cstablishing
contribulion obligations and
benefits

Employee’s contribulion rale
{percent of covered payroll)

City’s contnbution rale
{percent of covered payroll)

State obhgaton

Perivd required 10 vest

Eligibility and benefits [or
distribution (full-time}

Cligibility and benelits lor
distribution {volunieer)

Deferred retirement oplion

Provisions for:
Cost of living adjusiments
[normal relirement}

Death {duty, non-duty, post
relireinent)

Disability {duty. non-duty)

Cost ol living allowances

Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System

Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and
Retirement System

Police Pension and Retirement 1001
N.W, 63rd SL. Suite 605

Oklahoma City, OK 73116-7335

All full-time officers, emploved by a
participating munieipalily. not less than
21 years of age or more than 45 years of
age when hired.

State Statute

8% (a)

13% {c)

State appropriation to fund the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

10 years

20 years credited service, 2 '4% of final
average salary multiplicd by the vears
of credited service with a maximum of
30 years considered: if vested, at or
afier age 50, or afler 10 but before 20
vears ol credited service. with reduced
benefits.

Yes. 20 years crediled service with
additional option lo paricipate in
Louisiana Plan.

Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and
Relirement System
4545 N. Lincoln Blvd., Suite 265
Oklahoma City, OK 73105-3414

All full-time or voluntary firefighters ol a
parlicipating municipality. not less than
18 years of age or more than 45 years of
age.

State Statute

8% (b)

13% (d)

Suate appropriation Lo fund the unfunded
actuarial accrued liahility.

10 years

20 years credited service 2 '4% of final
average salary mulliplied by the vears ol
crediled service with a maximum of 30
years considered; il vested, at or alter ape
50, or after 10 but before 20 years of
credited service, with reduced benefits.

20 years credited service equal o §5 46
per month per year of service, witha
maximum of 30 years considered.

Yes. 20 years credited service with
continued service for a maximum of 30
vears.

Yes. if vested by 5/83

Yes

(a): 8% of base. college incentive, shifi differential & longevity, however the City s contract wuh (he union provides Lthat member contnoutions wiil be
%.

{b): 8% of base, college incentive, longevity, various commiilee pays, overtime, sick leave, vacation leave and paid day ofl buy backs, sick leave
incentive, EMT, hazmal, inspector, instructor and suppression pays [However the Ciiy's contragt wuh the uruon provides that member contribution
will be 4%.

{c):  13% oleligible salary as stated above. However, the City contraet with the union provides that the employver contribution will be 18%.

{d):  13% oleligible salary as stated above However, the City contract with the union provides that the emplover contribution will be 17%.
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Retirement Plan Contributions — OFPRS and OPPRS Cost-Sharing Plans

Oklahoma Police Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension
Pension and Retirement System and Retirement System
Fiscal Required Percentage Fiscal Required Percentage
Y ear Conlribution  Contributed Year Contribution Contributed
2009 §733.420 100% 2009 $842,799 100%
2010 746,218 100% 2010 885,569 100%
2011 760,087 100% 2011 885,986 100%

The state made on-behalf payments for the police pension system for $589,978 and for the fire pension
system of $1,676,441. These on-behalf payments were recognized as revenue and expenditures in the
current fiscal year.

OMRF Defined Contribution Plan:

The City has alse provided a defined contribution plan and trust known as the City of Midwest City Plan
and Trust (the “Plan™) in the form of the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement System Master Defined
Contribution Plan. OMRF operations are supervised by a nine-member Council of Trustees elected by
the participating municipalities. The Plan is administered by JPMorgan Chase of Oklahoma City. The
defined contribution plan is available to all full-time employees on a voluntary basis who are not already
participating in another plan. According to City Ordinance, the employee and employer are required to
contribute amounts equal to 0.0% and 13.0%, respectively, of the employee’s salary each month. The
employer’s contributions for each employee are 50% vested afier five years, with 10% vesting for each
subsequent year thereafter. If an employee terminates before becoming fully vested, the employer’s
contributions that are forfeited are allocated to the remaining fund participants based on percentage of
contribution, The authority to establish and amend the provisions of the plan rests with the City Council.
For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City contributed $1,713,035 to the plan, while the employee
contributions totaled $353.

OMREF issues separate plan financial statements which may be obtained by contacting the Oklahoma
Municipal Retirement Fund, 100 N. Broadway, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, 73102.

11. Postemployment Healthcare Plan

Plan Description. The City sponsors Medical, Rx, and Dental insurance to qualifying retirees and their
dependents. Coverage is provided through sclf-insurance that collectively operates as a substantive
single-employer defined benefit plan. Qualifying retirces are those employees who are eligible for
immediate disability or retirement benefits under the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System,
Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System, or the City of Midwest City Retirement Plan.
Retirees may continue coverage with the City by paying the determined rate. Coverage is available for
each of the lifetimes of retirees and their spouses. Authority to establish and amended benefit provisions
rest with the City Council. Retirees may continue coverage with the City by paying the premium rate.
Benefits are paid from general operating assets of the City as assessed by the self-insurance fund.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established by the City
Council. Annual health insurance premium amounts are established by the City Council. The required
coniribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2011, the
actuarially expected City contribution in the form of net age adjustment was $842,224 to the Plan. Plan
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members receiving benefits contributed $595,206 of the total premiums, through their payment of the full
determined premium in FY 2011,

Amnual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Citys™ annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
cost (expense) is catculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer {ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) over a period of thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost the amount actually contributed to
the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation to for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Amortization of Actuarial Accrued Liablity (AAL) $ 2,037,793
Normal Cost 842224
Interest on Net OPEB Obligations 121,273
Amortization of Net OPEB Obligation (241,834)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 2,759,456
Expected net benefits during the year (1.328,012)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,431,444
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 2.553,115
Net OPEB obligation - end of year ;) 3,984,559

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OQPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation as follows;

Percentage of Annual
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost
Ended Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Net OPEB Obligation
6/30/09 52,448,884 47% $1,286.676
6/30/10 $2,510,001 50% $2,553,115
6/30/11 $2,759.456 48% $3,984,559

Fiscal year 2009 was the first year the City was required to have an actuary performed and report any
liability.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
Plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $29,797,397, and the
actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$29,797,397. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $25.0
million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 119 percent. Because the plan is a
substantive plan there are no plan assets.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
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about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative 1o the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2010, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.75 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses),
which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's
own investments calculated based on the funded level of the Plan at the valuation date, and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 7 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent in
2015. The UAAL is being amortized over 30 years based on a level dollar basis. The remaining
amortization period at July 1, 2010, was twenty eight years. As of the date of this valuation, there are no
plan assets. Retiree premiums are paid as they come due from general operating assets of the City,

12. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

By its nature as a local government unity, the City and its component units are subject to various federal,
state and local laws and contractual regulations. Title 11, Section 17-211 of the Oklahoma Statutes
prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance in any individual fund of the City (excluding public
trusts). At June 30, 2011, the city reported a deficit fund balance of $4,741,620 in the Tax Increment

Financing Fund. This deficit is due to capital assets not being reported on the governmental fund
financial statements.

13. Commitments and Contingencies
Construction Contracts Qutstanding

The following construction contracts were outstanding at June 30, 2011:
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Soldier Credk Pedestrian Bridge b 1.600
Design Services - Bath House 50,000
Landscap/Irrigation Air Depol 1.013
Residential Street Repair 6,227
Residential Street Repair 2 54313
Cmty Cir OQutreach Bldg. 17,785
HVAC Cmty Center 49,840
Clock Tower 4,000
Surplus Office Construction 2.900
Original Mile Enhancement 4,035
Cooper Headstart Expansion 30,748
Ruesidential Sewer Line 5,196
Walter Plant Expansion 26,763
Sewer Plant Engineering 1,415,097
NE [7th & 19th Water Ln, 7.700
Sidewslks 2 45,152
Local Funded Sidewalks 1,597
Soldier Creek Bridge Repl. 42,000
Ridgewood/Robin Drainage Channel 11,033
Post Rd., Widen 18,154
15th - Fry to Anderson 80,375
Soldier Creek Ind, Park 123,420
Demo. Original City Hall 50,325
Liquid Boot - Jack in Box 30,000
Jet Dr./Harold Court 74462
Roof at Firc Headquarters 140,714

3 2,294 458

Litigation

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normaily occur in the course of governmental
operations. The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss contingencies that
may result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a
three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered
against the City. While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the
insurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels
that any settlement or judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition of the City.

Grant Programs

The City of Midwest City participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to year.
In 2011, the City’s involvement in federal and state award programs was not material due to no major
disasters. The grant/loan programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or
loaning agency, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant
or loan. The City has not been notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements.
Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably
determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

54



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

13. Subsequent Events

In September 2011, the Midwest City Municipal Authority (the “Authority™) issued Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds, series 2011, in the aggregate principal amount of $26,630,000, the net
proceeds of $26,345,850 (after premium of $125,867 and payment of underwriting fees $133,150 and
other issuance costs of $276,867) were used for refunding $26,740,000 of outstanding Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds, series 2003 which provide financing for construction and equipping the
Sheraton Hotel and the Reed Conference Center. The refinancing was done to capture the low interest
rates.

In December 2011, the Authority issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, series 2011A, in the
apgregate principal amount of $46,550,000. The net proceeds of $49,315,000 (after premium of
$3,447.256 and payment of underwriting fees $232,750 and other issuance costs of $449,506) are to be
used for funding capital infrastructure improvements to the wastewater treatment plant. The Authority
has pledged all revenues derived from the operation of the water and sanitary sewer systems less
operation cost, together with appropriated sales tax proceeds plus investment income of the Authority to
repay the bond. Appropriated sales tax to the Authority comprise of the following: 1.0% per Ordinance
No. 845, 0.25% per Ordinance No.2799, and 0.4015% per Ordinance No. 3145.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Year Ended June 30, 2011

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance:
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and penmits
Investment income
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Total Resources (Inflows)

Amounts available for appropriation
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

City Manager
City Clerk
Personnel
City Attorney
Community Development
Park & Recreation
Finance
Streets
General Government
Neighborhood Services
Information Technology
Emergency Response
Swimming Pools

Total Charges to Appropriations

Other financing sources (uses)
Transters from other funds
Transters te other funds

Total other financing sources (uscs)

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance

GENERAL FUND
Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget basis) Positive (Negative)
3 1,244,853 3 947,039 § 2475048 b 1,528.609.00
21,088,984 21,940,642 22,016,545 75,903
432,840 432,840 455,854 23,014
1,668,400 1,668,400 1,717,323 48,923
290,776 290,776 291,907 1,131
77.000 77,000 76,706 (294)
421,652 421,653 458,614 36,961
198,155 198,155 253,580 55,425
24.177.807 25,029,466 25,270,529 241,063
25,422,660 25,976,505 27,746,177 1,769,672
479,345 506,128 495,345 10,783
550,253 553,821 519,701 34120
378,894 355,326 326,109 29,217
117,772 118,003 114,084 3,919
1,665,058 1,701,733 1,513,468 188,265
470,094 491,858 456,192 35,666
544,753 546,682 528,177 18,505
2,681,776 2,822,151 2,635,537 186,614
913,482 919,629 881.176 38,453
1,225,131 1,227,014 1,166,067 60,947
369442 380,954 345,736 35,218
797.429 798,277 773,451 24,826
237,005 247.661 242,252 5,409
10,430,434 10,669,237 9,997,295 671,942
2,495 401 2,495,401 2,416,064 {79.337)
(16,081,288} (16,621,334) (16,732,343) (111,009)
{13,585,.887) (14,125,933) (14,316,279) {190,346)
3 1,406,339 $ 1.181,335 $ 3,432,603 % 2.251,268

Sce accompanying notes to this schedule.
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POLICE FUND

Actual Variance with
Rudpeted Amounis Amonnts Final Budpget
Oripinal Finol {Budget hasls) Posltive {Negatlve)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Bolance: $ 616,948 3 (420,153) & 2,102319 5 2,522472
Resounrces (Inflows):
Taxes 2,518,177 2.634.990 2,632.483 (2,507}
Interpovernmental . 28.764 - {28.764)
Investment income 46,738 46,738 41,090 (5.648)
Fines and forleitures - 64,000 58426 (5.574)
Miscellaneous 64,452 452 18,858 18,406
Toial Resources (Inflows) 2,629,367 2,774,944 2,750,837 {24,087
Amounts aveilable lor appropriation 3.246.315 2,354,791 4,853,176 2,498,385
Charges to Appropriations (OQutflows):
Public Salety 11,802,490 12,725,174 1 1.801.898 923,276
Total Charges to Appropriatlons 11,802,490 12,7254 11.501.898 923,276
Other linancing sources (uses)
Translers from other funds 9,132,962 9.428.177 9,171,506 (256,671}
Total other financing sources (uses) 9,132,962 9.428.177 9.171.506 [256.671)
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance M 576,787 $ (942,206) & 2,222,784 5 3,164,950
See accompanying noles 1o this schedule,
FIRE FUND
Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget basis) Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: b3 211,005 5 29,881 3 1.030,972 $ 1,001,091
Resources (InfTows):
Taxes 2045280 2,140,156 2138120 (2,036)
Charges for services 10,060 10,000 9023 (977
Investment income 15,879 15,879 24,399 8.520
Licenses and permils 13,700 13,700 10,375 13.325)
Miscellancous 41,500 51,500 (3.404) (54,904)
Total Resources (Infllows) 2.126.159 2,231,235 2,178,513 (52,722}
Amounts avallable for appropriation 2.337.364 2.261.116 3,209.485 948,369
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Public Sality 9,121,928 11,489,413 10,209,140 280.273
Total Charpges to Approepriations 9,121,923 10,489,413 10,209,140 280,273
Other financing sources {uses)
Transters from other funds 7.161 858 8,542,426 8,625,877 #3431
Translers to other funds (280.871) (218,784} {233.695) (14911
Total other financing sources (uses) 6,880,987 8,323,642 8392182 68.540
Ending Budgetary Fund Balence $ 96,423 $ 95,345 5 1,392,527 s 1,297,182

Sev accompanying notes to this schedule.
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Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule:

1. The budgetary comparison schedules and budgetary fund balance amounts are reported on the
modified cash basis of accounting. In addition, obligations that are required to be funded from ending
budgetary fund balances are subtracted from total ending budgetary fund balances to arrive at the
unreserved budgetary fund balance. This presentation of unreserved fund balances on a budgetary basis
is used to demonstrate compliance with Article 10, § 26 of the Oklahoma State Constitution.

2. The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of
appropriation between departments and object categories require the approval of the City Manager. All
supplemental appropriations require the approval of the City Council. Supplemental appropriations
must be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector. The city exceeded appropriations in
the following categories:

General Fund — Transfers out - $111,009
Fire Fund — Transfers out - $14,911

3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual (GAAP) basis as shown in the schedules
below:

Fund Balance
June 30, 2011

Net Change in
Fund Balance

Fund Balance
June 30, 2010

GENERAL FUND

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 4,980,258 $ 743,907 h 5,724,165
Increases {Decreases):
Revenues:
Receivable (3,816,429) (693,982) 4,510,411
Expenditures:
Payables 3,592 436 779,454 4,371,890
Encumbrances (201,283) {45,808} (247,091)
Impact of combining funds:
Reimbursed Projects Fund (515,150) 45,033 (470,117)
Employee Activity Fund (9,401) 3,860 (5.541)
Activity Fund (472,453) 5,087 (467,366)
Animals Best Friend Fund (24,625) (8,155) (32,780)
Disaster Relief Fund (1.057,705) 127,559 (930,146)
Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 2,475,648 5 956,955 $ 3,432,603
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POLICE FUND
Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:
Fund Balance - GAAP Basis
Increases (Decreases):

Revenues:

Receivable

Expenditures:
Payables

Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

FIRE FUND

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Fund Balance - GAAP Basis
Increases (Decreases):
Revenues:

Receivable

Expenditures:
Payables

Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Fund Balance
June 30, 2010

Net Change in
Fund Balance

Fund Balance
June 30, 2011

F 0 2,763.200 § 457,204 3,220,405
(1,561,476) 117,158 (1,444 318)

900,594 {453.897) 446,697

§ 2142319 b 120,405 2,222,784

Fund Balance

Net Change in

Fund Balance

June 30, 2010 Fund Balance June 30, 2011
b 936,723 $ (124.217) 812,506
(1,116,406} (2,514) (1.118.920)
1,210,655 488,286 1,698,941
% 1,030,972 $ 361,555 1,392,527
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Required Supplementary Information — OPER

The funded status and funding progress of the Citys defined benefit OPEB plan for the most recent

actuarial valuations is as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability - AAL (a)
Actuarial value of plan assets (b)
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability —
UAAL (funding excess) (a) — (b)

Funded ratio (b)/(a)

Covered payroll (c)

UAAL (funding excess) as a % of covered
payroll [UAAL/(c)]

July 1, 2008

July 1, 2010

$ 27,262,090 329,797,397
§ 27,362,090 $29.797,397
0% 0%

$ 19,891,000 $ 25,016,000
138% 119%

Three year trend information is not available.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Combining Balance Sheet — General Fund — June 30, 2011

ASSETS

4 ath and ash eyuisalems
Im cxlmeris

A coume recevable
Avctucd iterést fouen able
[epownts held I others
herrecenable

D from oAhet ot ernyments
Irug trom other funds.
Peepand itemms

Total Assats

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Lisbililles:

Avyignis payable and acerued Iabilies
Wages pavable

Thoe to olher praeminenis

Eclundable depouty

[hae o olbe funds

Delerred tovenue

Total Liabilities

Fund balance:
Nonpodable
Rostwted
Ausiynal
Unasigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Llabllides and Fund Balancas

GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS

REIMBURSED EMPLOYEE ANIMALS DISASTER
GENERAL PRDJECTS ACTIVITY ACTIITY BEST FRIEND RELIEF
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — General Fund — Year
Ended June 30, 2011

GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS

REIMBURSED EMPLOYEE ANIMALS DISASTER
GENERAL PROJECTS ACTIVITY ACTIVITY BEST FRIEND RELIEF
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
Ravenuss;
TN Y 22085974 % - 3 ] - s - ! - 5 Idaisym
Inigepos enmsental AR5023 RE wy - - - RRTN el
Chargen fof wrkes dre297 THINS - 103.31% - 115043 TRLTIR
Jucdment income s 1% 335 4 34 S48 L ELY 13RS5
Eungs & lorfeitures 1.666.5°4 - - o Y.t o 1676242
[ wenss & permits LW - - - - RO R T
Miscellapcous 152923 YRy H.hird 112484 el AR AR5 41944y
Tolel Revenuse 28.2K6 HIT 181700 AER 230145 142" T87.7Ré 25 XL
Expandllures:
€ urivnl
{xmetal g ernoent L0l ohX4T 125 169,372 T4H10TR
Publa ety 18 = TN
Siroets 5 - . - LEIVRSS
Cultwre s recrealion X2 E) - 194 414 w25
Tivalth and = oTlare - 2l ekl ENERS
Exvgomk developnient HE R L] LURLE] o - - 2R3 0n
Caprial cydlay 1.9me [£ R - TR 139610 Ardin]
Dbl ety e
Princepal reticeoet = - -
igrest o Gimal charges - - - -

Tolal Expendiiurs 10047747 TR5 3R 12.57% 274 421 2380 LR ] 11582320
Revenues over {under) axpandiures 1523 11hd (Lol 629 [RE T} 42" R.I4S (61224 14 537751
Qthar financing sources {uses):

Translurs 2414.40) 36,896 - 3T RRR 13865 244234k
Tranuers cud (16.776,]44) - - £16,710.14%4)
Tranafers @ - wWeraccount - 1000 EALLT) - &anny
Tramsfors vul - imIcracseant [LELLY) o - - - [LALLY)

Telal other financing sources {usas) [ERN L)) S AN LI 42685 - 13 6a% 114 [03.240)
HNel change in fund balances Ayl [RLEET) [LiZ] (L) H1%S (L2758% 4307
Fund Balance « beginning of yasr p& DN 515,150 w40l 472458 RIS L0387 08 4,90 158
Fund Balance - end of yasr E 3810 215 1 4741117 B #5641 1 472341 5 32"k 1 1) 146 4 SMI6S
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Combining Statement of Net Assets - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds — June 30, 2011

UTILITIES CUSTOMER GOLF 29TH &
UTILITIES UTILITY CAPITAL DEPOSIT COURSES DPOUGLAS
AUTIHORITY ' SERVICES ELinD FUND . FUNDS FUND TOTALS
Carrent apels;
Cash and ¢ash equivalents s 134,106 b} Slaor2 5 LHISEL) 5 g ] 140.45K a METM
Cash and cash equivalents, restneted - - - TR8 A - . 155, 5
In esimients AH0%g L3N LEXL2= - - 120104
Due fiom cther funds - . - =478 - 2975
Recevables.
Onher receivable - - - 2021 LRI AT
Interest - 4457 2,855 - - Tuiz
Accounts recesvable. ned - 53.74% - 13410 - - Al LA
Total current assets 422,190 228,782 28620 161,04 4% dhh 4u24 249 (%6
Noucureent asseis:
Iny esaments, restncted - - - WHERT - - YHAANT
Lend. copstruction 1o progress, and water nghts “1k,577 - 1,551 %6 - 212057 S500,I000 TR12494
Orther capital assets. net - 1.0674 AR - 12640, Y60 - 1827 1%7
Toral nopcurrent anpes A% 377 1074 2.143 560 Sh1AKT 1 AvY 417 £ SN INKL 10,614 11%
Toial aescin “70.767 226,26 LRLLALES 1,324,991 1400683 AR} 14,116474
LIARILITIES
Current HmbIUies:
Accouns payshle sad scorued habitiues 22501 24% 111,540 LXC1Y % 14x,741
Wages pryshle - 44,147 - - 45.%27 KY.970
Due to other Funds D o 2% 44,919 47,217
Accrued compunsarid dhrenggs - [CALL] B 2674 42843
Rctundably deposity, - - - 1% %64 - - 124, %69
Tolnl corrent Habliiie 22480 62,711 1T4K40 131187 127,u%3 % 455 680
Nogcorreal lsbilitles;
Aceruod compensated absences o 12,21k - - 1466 *2 a4
Refundable deposits - - - 116w u1y - - L16%RIY
Dug 10 other lunds 2 - 145,829 651547 Ki6. 374
Totnl ngncorrent Hubilities 22x 1. 16% M19 vy I8 R 1547 2 AMILKTY
Total lisblliticz 224811 44,43 113, k40 1301 N6 326178 Hid) KD 2,51y, 538
Investmicnt in capiin] aasets, nel of Telated debt SIn 517 100 214387 - [, %01, 66y EREUFLE] R RETA
Reatnetal for other puroscs 216,134 - - - - 21614
Unrestncted 213,533 130,521 2,191, T 23,45 12,236 <K 2878 46h
Totnl net masets h] 94H. 4 3 131097 § 4335943 k3 21485 ] 1.164.50% 494,962 LE,SYH. 976
—— LA
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
— Year Ended June 30, 2011

LTILITIES CUSTOMER GOLF 29T &
UTILITIES TTILITY CAPITAL DEPOSIT COURSES DOUGLAS
AUTIIORITY SERVICES FUND FUND FUNDS FUND TOTALS
Ogperatlug Reveours:
Charges for senioes b - 5 P KL 5 - 5 o by 1.0%),114 1Y 79,132 5 204,312
Totnl ppernilng revennes o w21 56 - - 1.050.114 74,132 2,085,132
Opersling Expenses:
Personal services - LR - - 619017 - L3l2k5y
Mairnials and supplics . 10,061 41,1 o 147,44} o %444
Ovhier servrces wid charges 104 0,140 = - 121321 LR ok Txd x00]
Oepreaiation and amorhizaion - 1) 20386 - 97.589] - 10%,277
Tetal operating expenses [{11] S, 5H1 61427 WAL 11493 1994451
Opernilng locome (loss) t(Iasy 17,503 (R14YT) “2.74% 47,140 55451
Now-Operatlog Reyennes (Evprosea):
Invesiment icome 44K 2977 40.45] LA 1271 - K5 NN7
Other non-operaling 1oy e LK - 14,182 - 9.21% - 25110
Interest expense and hiscal charges. = 8 - - (9. 354) 18,730 {5508y}
Tolal ] I ] 11.283 2977 24,541 LAY L1722 (45,73 5550k
Net iorome (loys) before transiers 11175 20,4100 (LA 165 21,KHU1) (K] [11.75%
Transfers - - 425,160 - 478 KO, 446 SIS
Trams(ers out - - - 17.714; - - 17.714)
Chaoge o net assety 1LIT4 204%0r 41%376 2V 49¥ ¢ RU.MEE x1.94%8 BI4KI6
Totsl net nsseis - beginalng 937,064 11417 1916967 g 1.254,650 4.763.007 10.983.1L0
Total net aspets - eading 3 44K.244 5 1311 %97 3 4015341 1 2V9KS 4 1.114.40% 5 oA kA4 962 1 11.59%.930
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Combining Statement of Cash Flows -

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds — June 30, 2011

€ ASH FLOW S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Rovets fioin canlomeres
Exvanents (o supplicrs
Pavmomis (o employess
Pavments of overdund fom
Roxu1pt of customer deposits
Rotune of customer deposits
Net Cash Provided by Operaung Acovitics

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Translers from olbor funds
Transfers 10 other funds

Nt Cash Provaded by { Used 1n) Non-Capital Financing, Avtivities.

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPFITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capiad assels pun hasad
Interest and Miscal charges pasd on capital deby
Nt Cash Providod by (Used mo Capnial and Related Finammg Acinams

CASH FLOW S FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of IDvestineEts
Imiorest e divadcrds

Net Cash Providod by (Lsed m I esting Avuvarigs

Net Incresse (Decrease) In Cash aod Cusb Eqalvalenis
Balances - begivulog of the vear

Balanted - ¢od of tbe yenr

Hecondiliatlon 1o Stalement of Net Agseln:
Cash and wash oquivaleats
Resinwied vavh amd cash oquivalimes
Toral cash and cash cquivalents

Recovdlintion of operating locome (bo3s) 1o net cash provided
by aperatleg acthvitles:
Opyrating i ome (lossh
Adqustments 1o reconale uncraling I onw, 1o net ¢ash peovaded
oy by operaing solivilies
THYFCC RN CXPenST
Ocher DOD-OPCTALLNE 1M GOW
Capital a558ct capuose
Change m avse by and Lt
Reuowvables, it
Due from other fumks
Avcunis pavables
D i other fupeds
Druc 1 enmployoes.
Refundable deposns
Accroed compesalal absenees
Nut Cash Provided by Oporating Activitics

UTILITIES CUSTOMER GOLF 29TH AND
UTILTIES UTILITY CAPITAL DEPOSIT COURSE DONGLAS
ALUTHORITY SERVICES FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS

b 1Lk ) 423,262 $ 142 5 10%s AY Lo 13 75,79 5 20M6
pagl b} 6 YKDY ATLI%S) 127912 (31,0 (R6,T71)
RS, Sk - - (LR (1370840
- - - (1320 (49,16 {TEB19) (Lo

- - - 512,463 - - 312461
o o (1%9,17%) o a (459.175)

24,715 A6 [RERECT 6,053 122410 [ ETED (1A%.540)

- - 425 2600 - 5975 KA, 546 11,181

- - 17.714) - - (2.7141

- 435261 7714 5974 RLEAN M7

(43 14%) - (L321.540) a (11,95 - (1.5K0 R844)

. - o o 4,155 45,711 (55,1

(55340 - {1,521 5460 - 21,20%) 4571 (16419170
(TN (L2045) T4BE (266,01 ) (FK324)

PRLE 2977 181 ALK 1,277 b, SUS

{6IL5H]) (118.01%) Al EACE 1277 ¢1,7229)
(H9.714) 7,324) 01,042,738} (2, TOY) [[LXET] [ERILISEN

223 %2\ 118,3% 1662876 S, 215 21N 2611574

3 114,14 $ 51,0013 § 630,11k 4 34841 § LAl Ah% 5 3 1,301,233
4 134,106 $ SL012 5 hl13K 5 - s 140 46% 1 - b 48,724
- . 35550 - 55500

] 134, 106 3 “LI& 5 f2ir 13k % 385,510 1 140,460 }) - S8 1.300.21%
b o) % 178405 ] 61 427) $ o 5 2.1 5 47,1400 s 45,851
0 201.38% . 97,591 118277

LKW} 5 14,182 - 9,21k - 23110

- pAd L3 41,296 41611

PALS - Loxs 1725 (L2 M)

- . . (5975 - (5.975)

2.5 144 (390, 144y (AU560) o (547,077
£1%.320) 13, 19% {7R.617) (140,112

597 - . 477 - 9674

- - S128% - - 53,26

- 22,654 - 7832 LI

4 14,215 1 50,69 (ISR § 60157 B 122410 s MXIS) 3 (1SR

ey
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Combining Statement of Net Assets — Internal Service Funds — June 30, 2011

ASSETS:
Current nyyels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Accounts receasable
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Inventory
Tolal curreni assels

Noncurren! asseist
Capital Assets-
Nondepreciable
Depreciable. net of accomulated depreciation
Total noneurrent assels

Talal Assels

LIABILITIES:
Current Habllhles:
Accounts payable and accrued Linbilines
Clauns linblility
Wages payvable
Accrued compensated absences
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent lisbilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Unfunded OPEB labilny
Ctaimns lability

Tetal noncurrent linbilities

Total Linbilities

Investment i capuial assets. net of related debt
Unsesiricied

Total Net Assels

PUBLIC FLEET SURPLUS L&H
WORKS SERVICES PROPERTY RISK BENEFITS
ADMINISTRATION FUND FLIND MANAGEMENT FUND TOTALS

5 107.745 $ 62.938 3 10.574 3 654233 476,550 LA72.0640
- - 120.347 L77447 996,020 2.889814

- - 3014 | Pl £4.052 2,188

. . 4.702 2,641 7243

. 14.551 B - - 14.551

- A6.A30 - - - A6 450

107,745 123.939 168935 2A32.504 1.559.263 4,422,386

2400 5911 - - 15.312

193.157 791,559 90.724 - - 1.075.440

193,157 BOD.95% 96.637 - - 1090753

300.902 924898 295,572 2432504 1.559.263 5513130

94% 73651 165,403 48.599 202.398 490.995

o o . 1,332,100 g a2 1,680,242

6239 41494 1065 13549 1,591 97233

33.259 32831 151 2,958 920 77119

70447 150,976 166,619 1.404.501 §53.05] 2.345.564

66.518 65,662 a0l 19917 1.841 154239

B o G - 1984.559 3.684.539

- - - 2473900 - 2473.900

66518 65,662 301 249817 3.986,900 6.612.698

136,965 210.638 166920 3.898.318 4.530.451 8.4058,202

193.157 ROO.95% 9%6.637 - - 1.080.753
(29.220) £92.699} 32.015 (1A4653814) (2.580.188) 14.533,900)
5 163.937 5 708.260 5 128,652 3 [1.465.814) (2.980,188) (3.445.153)

s
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets — Internal Service Funds —
Year Ended June 30, 2011

PUBLIC FLEET SURFLUS L&H
WORKS SERVICES FROFERTY RISK BENEFITS
ADMINISTRATION FUND FUND MANAGEMENT FUND TOTALS
Operating Revenpes:
Charges Jor services $ 746,823 §$  2.009.699 13 7y 8 1605916 5 4.285.629 5 8.685.610
Miscellaneous - 1.619 13 8524 160427 170.583
Tota) epernling res enues T4682X 2011218 37,356 1,614,440 4.446.056 8.856.193
Operatlog Expenses:
Personal senvices 606210 693.796 20.383 211.798 220408 1554285
Malcrials and supplies 8897 1.243910 16.81% 22908 - 1.292.53
Other senvices and charges 46,055 83,202 8.629 18.37% 149758 171,240
Insurance claims and expenses - - - 901.173 6.27799% 7.178.166
Deprecistion and amortization 11175 43271 2.042 . - 56491
Total operatng expenses 672337 2061.182 47.872 [.154.258 6.315.066 10.253.716
Operating lncome (losy) 74.486 (S2.664) t10.317) 460,182 (L.869.010) (1.397.523)
Non-Operntlog Revenoes:
Invesiment iniome 2.358 1.79% 4,015 58911 219456 H.55b
Toial non-operatlog revenues 2.358 1.7% 4,035 880 19 456 96550
Nel elcome (loss) before (ranyfers 76,844 151,068) 6,287 £19.093 {1.B19 584) (1.300.957)
Transfers in - 14,551 - - L7 15768
Translers out 49.000) 11000y o - - (52.000)
Chunge ln oel assets 27.844 {51 (6.282) 519,091 (1838337 {1.37.199)
Totnl net assets - beglnolog 136,093 1IN JEEREL] (1.984.907) (1.141.851) {2.107.954)
Tolal nel assels - ending ) 163937 3 T08.260 $§ 128652 §  (1465819) § [2.98(188) b {1495.153)
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Internal Service Funds — Year Ended June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Rovurpits (roft vustnmess.
Pavments 1w suppliars
Pavowrmis i traployvess
Pavmems of merfund oan
Clagns and benefits pond
et Cash Pron il by {Usad 1} Operatmg & tvales

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfan from othar fumls
Trastafore wr odhur fusmbs

it Cash Provided tey (Usod i) KNon-Cemtal Foaaneng Activibes

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capnal axsas punchasod
Nex Cash Provaded by {Uised i) Capatal and Rolsted Finanong Actranes

CASH FLOW S FROM INVESTING ACTIVVITIES
Sali: of myestin onts
Lmerest and dividens)s

Net Cash Providal by (Uisad in) Tnyeimg Actvitics
Nei Incrense (Decrease) ln Cagh and Cush Equivalenis
Balsocrs - brgioniog of the year

Baluoces « end of the year

Reconciliation 1o S istrment of Net Asseis:
Cash srul cash aguivalnts

Total cash ol caddt oquivalaits

Reconcltintlon of opermilng lncome (Loda) 10 det cadh provided
Ty operaviog mcalvliben:
Oparatmg o (ks )

[ n om0t ash provades!
(wsql) b opermime activiiies
Deeonalsm expensy
Chodge it asscts and Labihue:
Rewesvables, oo
Ly ey
Avoounts payables
Claxms habnliry
Dhae From other Tk
Dww (0 erapbovoes
Unfimod OPER hatwhiy
Aazual vonpensatal abunecs
Net Cacht Providad b Opogtog Acivites

FUBLIC FLEET SURPLLS L&H
WORKS NERYICES PROPERTY RISK BENEFITS
ADMINISTRATION FUND FUND MANAGEMENT FUND TOTALSY

3 T4h w22 $ 201030 ] ots k3 1655967, 5 4391171 5 RAIT2IS
(L 2 53] 11.326427) 25054 41247 L14975) (1415078)

(BN 159) 1642 0SK) (], T5%y (208 762) (21081 FLA Ty

(14.550) - - - {14,441y

- - (L10F 14y (4911848 6015139

0,221 U171k 16,273 2724 (58641 {14130y

a 14,541 - 1.217 15.76%

(42000 £1LKN B [RFALLT

(45000 11,551 - 1.217 136.212%

(462413 146 4139) (F). ML) - - (I32.661)

{46241 (46018 (681 - o (152.661)

- - (14 125) {6254y 6y, 14} (570,709}

2.3%% 1. 7% 4038 514% 140 YIARK
2% 1. 746 pd (105,03 1574442y 102,755 4776210
(12.662) {44410 (34,190 271.71%) (452K K155y

120,417 107,748 14,110 525981 G 2,147 %0

5 107,745 s 62,9 5 574 3 654 253 3 AT6 4501 $ 1372040
b ] 17,745 5 62.97% 5 S ] 654213 4 AT&.550 3 LW 40
5 107,745 [ £2.916 [} R 5 654,273 5 ATE 550 5 13720400
5 Td.dnh 5 52 H6d) 5 ey % A Ik2 5 (LaR el % 41197520
1117% 41274 2142 o “hA91
= (LX) 41537 (34 RKS) [SLALT)

o FLVLE] a o (05

(2.491) Lawh .52 (220 021) T 9% {10434

o o M4m (121 125 (97.155)

(14.551) - -
pr. 0 414 1620 238

- - 141y 07 141107

(6.27T%) 13454 T4 LAl ™ 7 450
S 0,221 1 (10.71%) $ 6,273 $ U272 b (SA6ENN § (14730}

74



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Debt Service Coverage Schedule - Year Ended June 30, 2011

2003 Revenue
Bonds
GROSS REVENUE AVAILABLE:
Water revenue b 6,953,355
Wastewater revenue 5,754,756
Pledged Sales Tax 1,998,858
Investment income 500,613
Total Gross Revenue Available 15,207,582
QPERATING EXPENSES:
Total Operating Expenses 8,004,126
Net Revenue Available for Debt Service L3 7,203,456
Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Obligations Payable From
Revenues of the System 3 2,000,344
Computed Coverage 360%
Coverage Requirement 125%
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STATISTICAL INFORMATION
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REFPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

General Government Expenditures by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal General Health and Culture & Economic Debl

Year Governmenl Public Safety Slreels Welfare Recreation Development Services Tolal
2001-02 $4,292,600 $15,253,257 $2,812,275 $263.913 $679,365 $2.093,942 $275,913 $25,671,265
2002-03 3,892,284 16,329,159 7.673,533 297,756 2,645,644 2,625,182 265,875 33,729,533
2003-04 3,710,400 16,761,918 5,461,272 319,567 2,496,180 6,505,305 2,797,526 38,052,258
2004-05 4,048,014 17,875,391 6,333,521 311,796 2,384,770 31,607,784 (1} 2,035.085 64,596,361
2005-06 4,823,711 19,324,367 3.072,745 287,426 2,790,104 4,756,832 2,216,881 37,282,066
2006-07 4,638,916 18,653,099 2,860,439 1,060,332 1,269,324 4,286,769 1,874,210 35,643,089
2007-08 4,433,847 22,751,353 4,704,754 9,065,571 1,833,511 4,151,318 3,096,734 50,037,088
2008-09 4,731,952 28.025,096 5,832,627 23,077,926 1,720,807 4,523,804 2,241,289 70,153,301
2008-10 4,341,709 25,474,931 14,974,806 1,491,596 1,667,029 4,648,669 2,811,624 55,400,364
2010-11 6,459,976 25,157,469 6,006,443 160,983 1,120,863 4,915,834 3,679,286 47,500,864

(1} Includes purchase of downtown redevelopment property lrom Midwest City Hospital Authaorily,
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Governmental Revenues By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Intergov- Licenses & Charges for Fines & Investment Misc
Fiscal Year Taxes ernmental Permits Services Forfeitures - Income Revenues Total

2001-02 §  20.159.151 ¥ 160,579 § 309,093 § 321,035 w8 406,997 5 981433 $ 23479279

20412-03 23022229 1,183,059 380425 1,885,413 1,098,749 [,251,173 1,613,759 30,434 807
2003-04 23,632,779 1.557.842 286406 1,289,359 1,180,610 7,203,875 758.812 35,909,683
2004-05 25,114,085 2,849,617 294,562 1,540,414 1,179,584 5,014,453 4,012,368 40,005,103
2005-06 27,656,355 2,308,525 306,977 2,170,231 1,619,238 6,308,052 6,128,707 46,498,085
2006-07 28,111,696 1,173,791 566,845 1,851,771 1,458,500 T 612,269 44,991,210
2007-08 31,705,767 8,261,565 413,183 1,766,807 1,916,846 (3.275.268) 1,162,943 41,951,843
2008-09 32,399,044 4,903,868 420,663 2,127414 2,104,237 (9.252,051) 775.469 33,478,644
2009-10 33,166,047 4,906,373 385949 2,066,991 1,878,424 6,582,036 2445317 51,431,137
2010-11 33,506,216 6,440,504 395,511 2,193,602 2,001,322 HARHRHY 552201 59,695,617
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Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of Total

Hiolalfesciual Assessed Value
Veteran and 1o Total
Personal Public Service Homestead Estimated Actual Estimated Actual
Fiscal Year Real Property Property Property Exemplion Assessed Value Value Value

2002 $153,576,279 $22,224,405 $11,562,906 $11,076,248 $176,287,302 $1,602,611,836 1%
2003 162,503,893 22,940,909 11,773,297 11,093,564 186,124,335 1,692,041,227 [1%
2004 173,101,148 23,175,077 11,938,564 10,958,198 197,256,591 1,793,241,736 11%
2005 187,753,614 25,809,437 12,908,515 10,986,804 215,484,762 1,958,952,382 [1%
2006 201,408,334 26,324,714 13,201,094 10,757,246 230,176,896 2092,517,236 11%
2007 216,308,965 27,831,980 12,095,233 10,654,076 245,582,102 2,232.564,564 11%
2008 233,726,705 27,869,971 12,100,868 14,043,632 259,653,912 (1) 2,360,490,127 11%
2009 244,609,641 29,359,839 12,004,561 14,504,429 271,469,612 (1) 2,467,905,563 11%
2010 252,013,094 27,856,671 13,374,321 10,453,302 278,216,075 (1) 2,529,237,045 11%
2011 258,517,927 27,728,562 13,697,571 10,398,494 284,605,074 (1) 2,587,318,855 11%

{1} New established exemption for velerans
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
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Property Tax Rates — All Overlapping Governmenis
{Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Total Total
City Midwest Midwesi Midwest
Sinking MW Rose State Oklahoma City Choclaw City OKC City
Fiscal Year Fund Schools Collepe County Resident Schools Resident Schools Resident
2002 14.20 6(.00 16.66 22.35 11321 60.58 113.7¢ 59.64 112.85
2003 11.45 61.83 16.62 23.15 113.05 63.85 115.07 54.44 105.66
2004 9.82 6l.11 16.50 22.99 110.42 61.33 110.64 57.84 107.15
2005 B.79 59.96 16.35 22.90 108.00 62.33 110.37 58.02 106.06
2006 9.25 62.79 18.29 22.81 113.14 62.60 112.95 57.07 107.42
2007 8.32 64.31 17.67 22,29 112.59 63.11 111.39 56.73 105.01
2008 729 65.05 17.30 23.18 112.82 606.66 114,43 52.4%8 100.25
2009 7.24 65.83 17.40 24.79 115.26 68.50 117.93 5843 107.86
2010 6.81 65.60 17.32 24.27 114.00 69.41 117.81 58.70 107.10
2011 6.62 64.64 17.18 24.06 112.50 70.22 118.08 62.09 109.95
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2011

Net assesed valuation $284,605,074
Debt limit (a) 328,460,507
Applicable bonds outstanding $9.700,000
Legal debt margin $18,760,507

(a} Article 10, section 26 of the Constitution of the State of Oklahoma limits municipal debt to 10% of net assessed
valuation for certain types of general obligation bonds.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt
To Total General Governmental Expenditures
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of Debt

Total General Service to

Total Debt Govermnmental Government
Fiscal Year Prinicipal Interest (1) Service Expenditures (2} Expenditures
2001-02 $225.000 $50,913 $275.913 $25,671.,265 1.07%
2002-03 225,000 40,875 265,875 33,729,533 0.79%
2003-04 1,250,000 1,547,526 2,797.526 38,052,258 7.35%
2004-03 1,300,000 663,185 1.963,185 64,596,361 3.04%
2005-06 1,300,000 916,881 2,216,881 37,282,066 5.95%
2006-07 1,075,000 599,313 1,674,313 35,643,089 4.70%
2007-08 1,350,000 1,102,596 2,452,596 50,037.088 4.90%
2008-09 1,400,000 635,560 2,035,560 70,153,301 2.90%
2009-10 1,400,000 569,623 1,969,623 55,400,364 3.56%
2010-11 1,400,000 503,685 1,903,685 47,500,864 4.01%

(1) Excluedes bond issuance and other costs



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt
To Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Less Debt Ratic of Net Net

Service Bonded Debt Bonded
Assessed Value Gross Bonded Money Net Bonded to Assessed Debt Per

Fiscal Year  Population (1) {2) Debt Available (3) Debt VYalue Capita
2001-02 54,088 176,287,302 15,900,000 175,064 15,724,936 8.92% 291
2002-03 54,088 186,124,535 15,675.000 2,292 868 13,382,132 7.19% 247
2003-04 54,088 197,256,591 14,525,000 1,635,499 12,889,501 6.53% 238
2004-05 54,088 215,484,762 13,125,000 1.760,224 11,364,776 5.27% 210
2005-06 54,088 230,176,896 16,325,000 1.480.497 14,844,503 6.45% 274
2006-07 54.088 245,582,102 15,250,000 1,961,500 13,288.500 5.41% 246
2007-08 54.088 259,653,914 13,900,000 1,683,112 12,216,888 4.71% 226
2008-09 54,088 271,469,612 12,500,000 1,513,528 10,986,472 4.05% 203
2009-10 54,088 278,216,075 11,100,000 1,500,619 11,£00,000 3.99% 205
2010-11 54,371 284,605,074 9,700,000 1.504,457 8.195.543 5.95% 151

{1) From table Demographics
{2) From table Assessed Value of Property
{3} Ending fund balances
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenue Bond and Note Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Direct Net Revenue Maximum Debt
Gross Operating Available for Annual Service
Fiscal Year Revenues Expenses Debt Service Debt Service Coverage
2001-02 £13,401,067 $11,283.610 $3.343,727 (1)  $1,304,906 2.56
2002-03 14.763,741 0,238,913 5,524,828 (1) 1,304,906 4.23
2003-04 15,967,210 9,797,926 6,169,284 (1) 1,967,389 3.14
2004-05 14,814,730 8.982.892 5,831,838 (1) 2,000,344 2.92
2005-06 15,148,626 8,765,616 6,383,010 (1) 2,000,344 3.19
2006-07 11,389,730 7.378,584 4,011,146 (1) 2,000,344 2.01
2007-08 14,201,820 7,372,367 6,829,453 (1) 2,000,344 341
2008-09 14,535,584 8,191,452 6,344,132 (1) 2,000,344 3.17
2009-10 14,822,864 7.867,225 6,955,639 (1) 2,000,344 348
2010-11 15,207,582 8,004,126 7.203.456 (1) 2,000,344 3.60

(1} Includes designated sales tax revenue
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Demographic Statistics

Population

Percent
Year Population Change
1950 10,166 0.00%
1960 36,058 254.69%
1970 48,212 33.71%
1980 49,559 2.79%
1990 52,267 5.46%
2000 54,088 3.48%
2010 54,371 0.50%

Population is taken from US Census conducted every 10 years.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

New Construction
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Commercial Construction Residential Construction

Number Number Total
Fiscal Year of Units Value of Unils Value Construction
2000-01 140 $14,156,260 651  %11,450,298 £25,606,558
2001-02 189 17,713,380 705 15,506,609 33,219,989
2002-03 214 8,483,577 680 26,304,941 34,788,518
2003-04 190 12,846,011 754 44,735,484 57,581,495
2004-05 232 22,444,891 801 34,627,558 57,072,449
2005-06 247 27,599,268 767 51,587,219 79,186,487
2006-07 245 49,578,946 618 33,434,637 83,013,583
2007-08 251 44,469,520 537 29,373,333 73,842,853
2008-09 264 28,032,074 504 29,169,569 57,201,643
2009-10 184 11,614,006 457 18,846,251 30,460,257
2010-11 170 14,052,174 203 23,937,338 37,989,512
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Date of [ncorporation
Form of government
Square miles in city limits
Miles of streets

Education

Number of primary schools
Number of secondary schools
Number of High schools
Number of colleges

Police Protection
Number of officers

Fire Protection

Number of stations

Number of headquarters
Number of personnel per shitt

Public Works

Water storage capacity (millions ot gallons)

Miles of water lines
Miles of sanitary sewer lines

Miscellaneous Statistics
June 30, 2011

1943
Council-manager
28
564 Lane miles

—
=]

—

93

27

9.5
283
277.19

Information obtained from various departments of the City of Midwest City.
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Miscellaneous Statistics, Continued
June 30, 2011

City Employees

Full Time
Full Time Hotel/Conference
Fiscal Year Government Center

2001-02 470 -
2002-03 476 -
2003-04 476 -
2004-05 476 -
2005-06 496 -
2006-07 503 -
2007-08 496 -
2008-09 490 -
2009-10 502 60
2010-11 494 62

83



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Miscellaneous Statistics, Continued
June 30, 2011

City Water Usage (Gallons)

Average Daily

Fiscal Year Annual  Usage Usage

2001-02 1,830,318.000 5,014,570
2002-03 1,758,223,000 4,817,049
2003-04 1,869.864,000 5122915
2004-05 1,768,672,000 4,845,676
2005-06 2,174,375,000 5.957,192
2006-07 2,021,890,000 5,539.425
2007-08 1,863,117,000 5,104,430
2008-09 1,931,741.887 5,292 444
2009-10 1,910,755,000 5,235,000
2010-11 1,953,204 ,878 5,351,246
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Independent Auditors” Report on Compliance and Other Matters and on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
The City of Midwest City, Oklahoma

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Midwest
City, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 17, 2012. Our report
contained an explanatory paragraph describing the City’s adoption of GASB Statement No. 54 in
the year ended June 30, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

1
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information of the governing body, management and

others within the City and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
January 17, 2012
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Independent Auditors” Report on Compliance with Requirements That
Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133
and on_the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
The City of Midwest City, Oklahoma

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma (the “City”) with the

types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
City’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to its major federal programs are the responsibility of the City’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America
and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. However, the results of our procedures
disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2011-01 and 2011-02.
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Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies as
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2011-01. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s responses and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated January 17, 2012. Our
audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management
of the City and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be,
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Qu\_n_ 'i Qn_nd\ © C.

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
January 17, 2012



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

CFDA Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Progam Title Number Pass-Through Grantor Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Justice
Weed and Seed Progam 16.595 2009-WS-QX-0074 $ 56,295
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 N/A 2,849
Passed through OK Dept. of Mental Health & Substance Abuse:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 OCSO 2M2L 2010-0002 3,748
Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Program 16.727 OCSO 2M2L 2010-0002 26,166
Total U.S. Separtment of Justice 89,058
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Passed through Oklahoma Department of Civil Emergency Management:
Emergency Performance Grant 10 97.042 10,000
Emergency Performance Grant 11 97.042 23,190
June 2010 Flooding Disaster Relief 97.036 FEMA-1926-DR-OK 75,864
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 FEMA-1803-DR-OK 280,087
Passed through Oklahoma Office of Homeland Security:
2008 Urban Area Security Initiative Grant 97.008 131.012 19,023
State Homeland Security Program 97.073-32 N/A 3,059
Total Federal Emergency Management Agency 411,223
U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B-05-MC-40-0005 95,101
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B-06-MC-40-0005 53,410
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B-07-MC-40-0005 107,742
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B-08-MC-40-0005 46,409
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B-09-MC-40-0005 44917
Community Dev Block Grant - Recovery 14.218 B-09-MY-40-0005 103,614
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B-10-MC-40-0005 352,788
Economic Development Initiative Grant 14.251 N/A 198,000
1,001,981
Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commerce
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.228 13593 NSP 08 496,114
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,498,095
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Midwest City Water Treatment Plant Upgrade 66.202 N/A 415,110
U.S. Department of Energy
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 81.128 N/A 472,211
U.S Department of Transportation
Passed through Oklahoma Highway Safety Office:
Oklahoma Highway Safety Office 20.600-0000 PT10-03-24-07 20,423
Oklahoma Highway Safety Office 20.600 OP11-03-08-08 49,365
Passed through Oklahoma Dept. of Transportation:
Pedestrian Walkways Grant 20.205 HPP-155E (590) HP 54,822
Pedestrian Walkways Grant 20.205 HPP-155E (590) HP 20,762
Passed through Oklahoma Dept. of Agriculture:
2008 Highway Tree Program 20.205 SAFETEALU-08-04 4,321
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 149,693
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 3,035,390

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards



NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE A--BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal awards activity of the City
of Midwest City, Oklahoma (the “City”), and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE B--SUBRECIPIENTS

The City provided no federal awards to subrecipients.



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section I--Summary of Auditors” Results

Financial statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting;:

o Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are

not considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X __none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X__no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? X __yes none reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-133? X __yes no

Identification of major programs:

Program CFDA Number
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.228
Water Treatment Plant 66.202
Energy Efficency and Conservation Block Grant 81.128

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:  $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X__no



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS--Continued
THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section II--Findings required to be reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards:
There are none to report for the June 30, 2011 period.
Section III--Finding required to be reported in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133:

See Findings 2011-01 and 2011-02.



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS--Continued
THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Finding 2011 - 01

Deficiency: The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards was not complete for the year
ending June 30, 2010. The City omitted the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
(CFDA #16.804) from the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. Additionally, the
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant was funded using appropriations from the
American Recovery Reinvestment Act of 2009 and, therefore, would have been considered a
major program in fiscal year 2010. The omission of the grant from the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards resulted in the program not being tested for the year ending June 20, 2010.

Requirement: Office of Management and Budget (“OMB”) Circular A-133 “Auditees”, Subpart
C, Section 210. A. (2), “Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards”, requires that “For Federal
awards received as subrecipient, the name of the pass-through entity and identifying number assigned by
the passOthrough entity shall be included.”

Additionally, per Appendix VII “Other OMB Circular A-133 Advisories” Part I, American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act, “Even though a Type A program otherwise meets the criteria
aslowOrisk under § .520(c) of OMB Circular A-133, due to the inherent risk associated with the
transparency and accountability requirements governing expenditures of ARRA award, and program or
cluster with expenditures of ARRA awards would not qualify as low-risk Type A. Even a de minimus
amount of ARRA expenditures would not support identifying the program as low risk.”

Potential Effects: The City submitted an incomplete Data Collection Form in FY2010 and
omitted a major program from testing and reporting in the Single Audit Report for the period
ending June 30, 2010; which could affect the approval of future grant requests from federal

agencies and future omissions of federal expenditures from the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards.

Cause of the Condition: The City did not have sufficient procedures in place to ensure that the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is complete. Additionally, the staff believed that
because they were a subrecipient of these funds from the City of Oklahoma City, that the City of
Oklahoma City was the only entity required to report these funds.

Recommendation: We recommend that procedures be put in place to ensure that the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards is complete each year. An example of such a procedure
would be a reconciliation of grant revenue from the financial statements to the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards at year end. We also would recommend additional training
for staff involved in federal grants to gain a better understanding of the financial reporting
requirements under OMB Circular A-133.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS--Continued
THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Finding 2011 - 01--Continued

City’s Response: The City agrees that the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant was
omitted from the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) in fiscal year 2010. The
City has established a separate fund for receiving all grant proceeds. These funds pass through
from the City of Oklahoma City. The City of Oklahoma City reported the grant on their SEFA.
Midwest City did not report it due to misunderstand of the reporting responsibility for these
funds. The City concurs that additional training is needed by staff for these departments that
handle their own grants. Staff will encourage additional training on compliance of grant
administration and reporting.

Current Status: City will review current procedure to ensure correct reporting, for example,
implement the completion of a schedule each year in our audit preparation which reconciles all
revenues classified as ‘Intergovernmental” to the schedule of federal expenditures or obtain an
explanation of variances.

Finding 2011 - 02

Deficiency: The fourth quarter SF-425 report for the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block
Grant (CFDA #81.128) was submitted on August 29, 2011. The due date of this report was July
30, 2011. The reporting requirements of the grant require that quarterly report submissions be
submitted no later than 30 days after the end of the reporting period.

Requirement: Per review of Federal Financial Report Instructions for OMB Circular A-133,
“Reporting Requirements” section 2, “Quarterly and semi-annual interim reports shall be submitted
no later than 30 days after the end of each reporting period.”

Potential Effects: The city submitted the SF-425 quarterly federal financial report after its due
date, which could affect the approval of future grant requests from federal agencies.

Cause of the Condition: The City had some issues during its electronic submission of the form.
They attempted to submit the report before the due date, but received no confirmation back
from the Department of Energy stating that the transmittal had been completed. The City was
notified in August that the report had not been received and that the report was needed
immediately.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS--Continued
THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Finding 2011 - 02--Continued

Recommendation: We recommend that the City follow up with all report submissions by
contacting the agencies providing grant funding after the reports are submitted to ensure that
the reports are received. We would also recommend that confirmations received of successful
submission of these reports be retained by the City.

City’s Response: The City agrees that the report was received by the grantor agency after the
stated deadline. When a report is successfully uploaded from the 3" party system (PAGE) to
DOE, a confirmation is received and retained by the City. However due to City’s inability to
upload the report from PAGE to DOE, the report had to be retrieved directly from PAGE by
DOE, which occurred after the deadline.

Current Status: Subsequent reports continue to be retrieved by the grantor agency after contact
by the City to the PAGE helpdesk and/or DOE program officer. Attention will be taken to
assure this is completed within 30 days of the end of a reporting period. The City will continue
to work on a attempt to resolve transmittal issues with the grantor agency and our local
systems.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA

Year Ended June 30, 2011

No matters are reportable.
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